3M CO Form DEF 14A March 27, 2013

Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Filed by the Registrant ý

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant o

Check the appropriate box:

- o Preliminary Proxy Statement
- o Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- ý Definitive Proxy Statement
- o Definitive Additional Materials
- o Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

3M Company

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

N/A

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

- ý No fee required.
- o Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
 - (1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
 - (2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
 - (3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
 - (4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

Total fee paid:

(5)

o	Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.						
o	Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fe was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.						
	(1)	Amount Previously Paid:					
	(2)	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:					
	(3)	Filing Party:					
	(4)	Date Filed:					
		Persons who are to respond to the collection of information contained in this form are not required to respond unless the form displays a currently valid OMB control number.					

Table of Contents

Inge G. Thulin

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

March 27, 2013

Dear Stockholder:

We are pleased to invite you to attend 3M's Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be held on Tuesday, May 14, 2013, at 10:00 a.m., Central Daylight Time at the RiverCentre, 175 West Kellogg Boulevard, St. Paul, Minnesota.

Details regarding admission to the meeting and the business to be conducted are more fully described in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement. We will report on Company operations and discuss our future plans. There will also be time for your questions and comments.

The fine attendance of our stockholders at Annual Meetings over the years has been very helpful in maintaining good communication. We sincerely hope you will be able to join us. For information on how to attend the Annual Meeting, please read "Annual Meeting Admission" on page 1 of this Proxy Statement. Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, please vote as soon as possible. You may vote your proxy on the Internet, by telephone, or, if this Proxy Statement was mailed to you, by completing and mailing the enclosed traditional proxy card. Please review the instructions on the proxy card or the electronic proxy material delivery notice regarding each of these voting options.

Thank you for your ongoing support of 3M.

Sincerely,

Table of Contents

2013 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

NOTICE OF 2013 ANNUAL MEETING AND PROXY STATEMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Notice of 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders Proxy Statement	<u>iii</u>
	<u>1</u>
Purpose of the Annual Meeting	<u>1</u>
Annual Meeting Admission	<u>1</u>
Information About the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials	2
Stockholders Entitled to Vote	- -
Proposals You Are Asked to Vote On and the Board's Voting Recommendations	<u>=</u>
Voting Requirements to Elect Directors and Approve Each of the Proposals Described in this Proxy Statement	4
Voting Methods	4
Changing Your Vote	5
Counting the Vote	6
<u>Confidentiality</u>	<u>6</u>
Results of the Vote	7
Delivery of Documents to Stockholders Sharing an Address	7
	7
List of Stockholders	7
Cost of Proxy Solicitation	<u>8</u>
Transfer Agent	8
Governance of the Company	9
Corporate Governance Guidelines	
Executive Sessions	9
Board's Leadership Structure	2
Lead Independent Director	9
Communication with Directors	<u>10</u>
Director Independence	<u>11</u>
Director Nomination Process	<u>11</u>
Board's Role in Risk Oversight	<u>12</u>

3M Business Conduct Policies	<u>14</u>
	<u>14</u>
Related Person Transaction Policy and Procedures	<u>15</u>
Policy on Adoption of a Rights Plan	<u>15</u>
Board and Committee Membership	<u>17</u>
Audit Committee	<u> </u>
Compensation Committee	_
Finance Committee	<u>18</u>
Nominating and Governance Committee	<u>19</u>
Director Compensation and Stock Ownership Guidelines	<u>20</u>
Proposals To Be Voted On	<u>23</u>
1	

Table of Contents

Proposal No. 1 Election of the Eleven Directors Identified in this Proxy Statement Proposal No. 2 Ratification of the Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for 2013	<u>23</u>	
	<u>28</u>	
Proposal No. 3 Advisory Approval of Executive Compensation	<u>28</u>	
Proposal No. 4 Stockholder Proposal on Action by Written Consent	<u>29</u>	
Proposal No. 5 Stockholder Proposal on Prohibiting Political Spending from Corporate Treasury Funds	<u>31</u>	
Information on Stock Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers		
Security Ownership of More Than 5 Percent Stockholders	<u>35</u>	
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	<u>36</u>	
Executive Compensation	<u>37</u>	
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	<u>37</u>	
Compensation Committee Report	<u>37</u>	
	<u>56</u>	
Assessment of Risk Related to Compensation Programs	<u>56</u>	
2012 Summary Compensation Table	<u>58</u>	
2012 All Other Compensation Table	<u>59</u>	
2012 Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table		
2012 Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table	<u>61</u> <u>64</u>	
2012 Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table		
Pension Benefits	<u>66</u>	
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation	<u>68</u>	
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control	<u>70</u>	
	<u>72</u>	
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation	<u>75</u>	
Audit Committee Report	<u>76</u>	
Audit Committee Policy on Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	<u>76</u>	
Fees of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	70	
Requirements for Submission of Stockholder Proposals for Next Year's Annual Meeting		
ii	<u>78</u>	

3M COMPANY

3M Center, St. Paul, Minnesota 55144

NOTICE OF 2013 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

TIME AND DATE 10:00 a.m., Central Daylight Time on Tuesday, May 14, 2013

PLACE RiverCentre

175 West Kellogg Boulevard St. Paul, Minnesota 55102

ITEMS OF BUSINESS

- (1) Elect the eleven directors identified in this Proxy Statement, each for a term of one year.
- (2) Ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as 3M's independent registered public accounting firm for 2013.
- (3) Advisory approval of executive compensation.
- (4) Consider two stockholder proposals, if properly presented at the meeting. See the Table of Contents for a description of the stockholder proposals.
- (5) Transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting and any adjournment or postponement.

ADJOURNMENTS AND POSTPONEMENTS

Any action on the items of business described above may be considered at the Annual Meeting at the time and on the date specified above or at any time and date to which the Annual Meeting may be properly adjourned or postponed.

ANNUAL REPORT

Our 2012 Annual Report, which is not part of the proxy soliciting materials, is enclosed if the proxy materials were mailed to you. The Annual Report is accessible on the Internet by visiting www.proxyvote.com, if you have received the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, or previously consented to the electronic delivery of proxy materials.

RECORD DATE

You are entitled to vote if you were a stockholder of record at the close of business on Friday, March 15, 2013.

MEETING ADMISSION

An admission ticket or proof of ownership of 3M stock, as well as photo identification, must be presented in order to be admitted to the Annual Meeting. If you are a stockholder of record, your admission ticket is your proxy card or Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials. If your shares are held in the name of a bank, broker, or other holder of record, you must bring a brokerage statement or other proof of ownership with you to the Meeting. If this Proxy Statement was mailed to you, your admission ticket is included in the mailings. Please refer to the section entitled "Annual Meeting Admission" on page 1 for further details.

VOTING

For instructions on voting, please refer to the instructions on the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials you received in the mail or, if you requested or received a hard copy of the Proxy Statement, on your enclosed proxy card.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

GREGG M. LARSON

Deputy General Counsel and Secretary

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON MAY 14, 2013: The Notice of Annual Meeting, Proxy Statement, and the 2012 Annual Report

are available at www.proxyvote.com. Enter the 12-digit control number located in the box next to the arrow on the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or proxy card to view these materials.

THIS PROXY STATEMENT AND PROXY CARD, OR THE NOTICE OF INTERNET AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS, ARE BEING DISTRIBUTED ON OR ABOUT MARCH 27, 2013.

iii

Table of Contents

PROXY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors (the "Board") of 3M Company, a Delaware corporation ("3M" or the "Company") is soliciting proxies for the Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholders. You are receiving a Proxy Statement because you own shares of 3M common stock that entitle you to vote at the meeting. By use of a proxy you can vote, whether or not you attend the meeting. The Proxy Statement describes the matters we would like you to vote on and provides information on those matters so you can make an informed decision.

The information included in this Proxy Statement relates to proposals to be voted on at the meeting (if properly presented), the voting process, 3M's Board and Board committees, the compensation of directors and certain executive officers, and other required information.

Purpose of the Annual Meeting

The purpose of the Annual Meeting is to elect the directors identified in this Proxy Statement and to conduct the business described in the Notice of Annual Meeting.

Annual Meeting Admission

How do I attend the 2013 Annual Meeting? What do I need to bring?

Only stockholders are invited to attend the meeting. An admission ticket or proof of ownership of 3M stock, along with photo identification, must be presented in order to be admitted to the Annual Meeting.

If you are a registered stockholder (a stockholder of record), the top half of your proxy card or your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials is your admission ticket.

If you hold your shares through a broker, bank or otherwise in street name, please bring one of the following: a copy of the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or voting instruction form received from your broker, a brokerage statement reflecting your ownership as of the record date March 15, 2013, a letter from your broker or bank, or other evidence of 3M stock ownership as of the record date.

If this Proxy Statement was mailed to you, your admission ticket is included in the mailings.

If you received your notice of the 2013 Annual Meeting by e-mail, please bring a printout of the e-mail.

You can print an admission ticket at www.proxyvote.com. You will need the 12-digit control number printed on your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or your proxy card.

If you are not a record date stockholder, you may be admitted to the 2013 Annual Meeting only if you have a valid legal proxy from a record date stockholder. Any holder of a proxy must present the proxy card, properly executed, and a copy of the proof of ownership.

If you do not provide photo identification or comply with the other procedures outlined above, you will not be admitted to the Annual Meeting.

No cameras, recording equipment, electronic devices, large bags, briefcases, or packages will be permitted in the Annual Meeting. All cell phones must be turned off during the meeting.

Table of Contents

Information about the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials

Why did I receive the Notice of Internet Availability of the proxy materials and not the printed proxy materials?

This year, we are pleased to be again using the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission rule that allows companies to furnish their proxy materials over the Internet. As a result, we are mailing to many of our stockholders a notice about the Internet availability of the proxy materials instead of a paper copy of the proxy materials. All stockholders receiving the notice will have the ability to access the proxy materials over the Internet and request to receive a paper copy of the proxy materials by mail. Instructions on how to access the proxy materials over the Internet or to request a paper copy may be found in the notice. In addition, the notice contains instructions on how you may request to access proxy materials in printed form by mail or electronically on an ongoing basis. Continuing to employ this distribution process will conserve natural resources and reduce the costs of printing and distributing our proxy materials.

Why didn't I receive the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials in the mail?

We are providing some of our stockholders, including stockholders who have previously requested to receive paper copies of the proxy materials, with paper copies of the proxy materials instead of the Notice.

In addition, we are providing the Notice by e-mail to those stockholders who have previously elected delivery of the proxy materials electronically. Those stockholders should have received an e-mail containing a link to the Web site where those materials are available and a link to the proxy voting Web site.

How do I view the proxy materials online?

Go to <u>www.proxyvote.com</u> and follow the instructions to view the materials. It is necessary to provide the information printed in the box marked by the arrow located on your Notice. (See example below the information in the box is an example only your number will be different and is unique to you.)

What if I still prefer to receive a paper copy of the proxy materials?

You can easily request a paper copy at no cost by selecting from one of the three options below. You will need the information on the Notice that is printed in the box marked by the arrow (see example above the information in the box is an example only your number will be different and is unique to you).

By INTERNET at www.proxyvote.com;

By TELEPHONE, toll-free at 800-579-1639; or

By sending an **E-MAIL** to <u>sendmaterial@proxyvote.com</u>; simply enter the information in the box next to the arrow from your Notice in the subject line. No other information is necessary.

Can I request to receive my materials by e-mail rather than receive the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials?

You may request to receive proxy materials for all *future* meetings by e-mail by going to <u>www.proxyvote.com</u> or <u>www.investordelivery.com</u> and follow the electronic delivery enrollment instructions. If you choose to access future proxy materials electronically, you will receive an e-mail with instructions containing a link to the Web site where those materials are

Table of Contents

available and a link to the proxy voting Web site. Your election to access proxy materials by e-mail will remain in effect until you terminate it.

Please note that you MAY NOT USE YOUR Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials to vote your shares; it is NOT a form for voting. If you send the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials back your vote will not count.

For more information about the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, please visit: www.sec.gov/spotlight/proxymatters/e-proxy.shtml.

Stockholders Entitled to Vote

Each share of our common stock outstanding as of the close of business on March 15, 2013, the record date, is entitled to one vote at the Annual Meeting on each matter properly brought before the meeting. As of that date, there were approximately 690,763,500 shares of common stock issued and outstanding.

Most 3M stockholders hold their shares through a stockbroker, bank, trustee, or other nominee rather than directly in their own name. As summarized below, there are some distinctions between shares held of record and those owned beneficially:

STOCKHOLDER OF RECORD If your shares are registered directly in your name with 3M's Transfer Agent, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., you are considered the stockholder of record of those shares and the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, or if you requested, these proxy materials are being sent directly to you by 3M. As the stockholder of record, you have the right to grant your voting proxy directly to 3M or to vote in person at the meeting. You may also vote on the Internet or by telephone, as described in the Notice and below under the heading "Voting Methods."

BENEFICIAL OWNER If your shares are held in a stock brokerage account, by a bank, trustee, or other nominee, you are considered the beneficial owner of shares held in street name and these proxy materials are being forwarded to you by your broker, trustee, or nominee who is considered the stockholder of record of those shares. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker, trustee, or nominee on how to vote and are also invited to attend the meeting. However, since you are not the stockholder of record, you may not vote these shares in person at the meeting, unless you obtain a legal proxy from the broker, trustee, or nominee. Your broker, trustee, or nominee is obligated to provide you with a voting instruction card for you to use. You may also vote on the Internet or by telephone, as described in the Notice and below under the heading "Voting Methods."

If your shares are held in your account in the 3M Voluntary Investment Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plan or the 3M Savings Plan, you are considered the beneficial owner of these shares and the trustee of the plans is the stockholder of record. Participants in 3M's Voluntary Investment Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plan or the 3M Savings Plan may direct the trustee how to vote the shares allocated to their account by following the voting instructions contained on the proxy card. Participants in 3M's Voluntary Investment Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plan may also direct the trustee how to vote a proportionate number of allocated shares of common stock for which it has not received direction by following the same voting instructions. If you fail to direct the trustee how to vote your shares by following these voting instructions, the trustee will vote your shares as described in the voting instructions. You may also vote on the Internet or by telephone, as described in the Notice and below under the heading "Voting Methods."

Table of Contents

Proposals You Are Asked to Vote On and the Board's Voting Recommendations

The following proposals are included in this Proxy Statement and are scheduled to be voted on at the meeting. 3M's Board recommends that you vote your shares as indicated below.

Proposals:

The election of the eleven directors identified in this Proxy Statement.

"FOR"
each nominee
to the Board

The Board's

The ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as 3M's independent registered public accounting firm for 2013.
 Advisory approval of executive compensation. "FOR"

4. Stockholder proposal on action by written consent. "AGAINST"

5. Stockholder proposal on prohibiting political spending from corporate treasury funds. "AGAINST"

Other than the proposals described in this Proxy Statement, the Board is not aware of any other matters to be presented for a vote at the Annual Meeting. If you grant a proxy by telephone, Internet, or by signing and returning your proxy card, any of the persons appointed by the Board of Directors as proxy holders Gregg M. Larson, David W. Meline, and Inge G. Thulin will have the discretion to vote your shares on any additional matters properly presented for a vote at the meeting. If any of our nominees is unavailable as a candidate for director, the above-named proxy holders will vote your proxy for another candidate or candidates as may be nominated by the Board of Directors.

Voting Requirements to Elect Directors and Approve Each of the Proposals Described in this Proxy Statement

Quorum The presence of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting, present in person or represented by proxy, is necessary to constitute a quorum. Abstentions and "broker non-votes" are counted as present for purposes of determining a quorum. A "broker non-vote" occurs when a bank, broker, or other holder of record holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because that holder does not have discretionary voting power for that particular item and has not received instructions from the beneficial owner.

Broker Vote Under New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) rules, brokers are permitted to vote their clients' shares in "routine" matters (such as ratification of auditors) so long as the beneficial owner of those shares did not provide voting instructions to the broker at least ten days before the stockholder meeting. Uncontested director elections, stockholder proposals, executive compensation matters, including say-on-pay, say-on-frequency of say-on-pay, and say-on golden-parachutes, are not considered "routine" matters for purposes of this rule. As a result, if you do not provide your broker with instructions as to how to vote your shares, your broker will be prohibited from voting on Proposals 1, 3, 4, and 5.

If you are a beneficial owner (other than as a participant in the 3M Voluntary Investment Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plan or the 3M Savings Plan), your bank, broker, or other holder of record is permitted to vote your shares on the ratification of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2013, even if the record holder does not receive voting instructions from you.

Table of Contents

Election of Directors In accordance with 3M's Bylaws, each director is elected by the vote of the majority of votes cast (which means the number of votes cast "for" a director's election exceeds the number of votes cast "against" that director's election with "abstentions" and "broker non-votes" not counted as a vote cast either "for" or "against" that director's election) with respect to that director's election at any meeting for the election of directors at which a quorum is present, provided that if, as of the tenth (10th) day preceding the date the Company first mails its notice of meeting for such meeting to the Company's stockholders, the number of nominees exceeds the number of directors to be elected (a "Contested Election"), the directors shall be elected by the vote of a plurality of the votes cast (which means that the nominees who receive the most affirmative votes are elected to serve as directors).

For an election where the majority vote standard applies, the Nominating and Governance Committee has established procedures under which any incumbent director who is not elected shall offer to tender his or her resignation to the Board. In the event an incumbent director fails to receive a majority of the votes cast in an election that is not a Contested Election, the Nominating and Governance Committee, or such other committee designated by the Board of Directors, shall make a recommendation to the Board of Directors as to whether to accept or reject the resignation of such incumbent director, or whether other action should be taken. The Board of Directors shall act on the resignation, taking into account the Committee's recommendation, and publicly disclose (by a press release and filing an appropriate disclosure with the Securities and Exchange Commission) its decision regarding the resignation and, if such resignation is rejected, the rationale behind the decision within ninety (90) days following certification of the election results. The Nominating and Governance Committee in making its recommendation and the Board of Directors in making its decision each may consider any factors and other information that they consider appropriate and relevant.

An incumbent director who fails to receive a majority of the votes cast in an election that is not a Contested Election (as defined above) and who tenders his or her resignation pursuant to the procedures described above shall remain active and engaged in Board activities while the Nominating and Governance Committee and the Board decide whether to accept or reject such resignation, or whether other action should be taken; provided, however, it is expected that such incumbent director shall not participate in any proceedings by the Nominating and Governance Committee or the Board regarding whether to accept or reject such director's resignation, or whether to take other action with respect to such director.

If the Board of Directors accepts a director's resignation, or if a nominee for director is not elected and the nominee is not an incumbent director, then the Board of Directors may fill the resulting vacancy pursuant to the Bylaws.

All Other Proposals The affirmative "FOR" vote of a majority of those shares present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on the matter is required to approve Proposals Nos. 2 through 5. In tabulating the voting result for any particular proposal, abstentions and, if applicable, broker non-votes are not counted as votes "FOR" or "AGAINST" the proposal. An abstention will, however, be counted as entitled to vote on a proposal and will, therefore, have the effect of a vote "AGAINST". The stockholder proposals are presented as requests to the Board to take action.

Voting Methods

If you hold shares directly as the stockholder of record, you may vote by granting a proxy or vote in person at the Annual Meeting by requesting a ballot, or, if you hold shares beneficially in street name, by submitting voting instructions to your broker or nominee. If you own shares beneficially as a participant in the 3M Voluntary Investment Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plan or the 3M Savings Plan, you may vote by submitting voting instructions to the trustee. In most instances, you will be able to do this over the Internet, by telephone, or by mail. Even if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, we recommend that you vote your shares in advance as described below so that your vote will be counted if

Table of Contents

you later decide not to attend the Annual Meeting. Please refer to the summary instructions below and those included on your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or proxy card or, for shares held in street name, the voting instruction card included by your broker or nominee.

The Internet and telephone voting procedures are designed to authenticate stockholders by use of a control number and to allow you to confirm that your instructions have been properly recorded. If you vote by telephone or on the Internet, you do not need to return your proxy card. Telephone and Internet voting for stockholders of record will be available 24 hours a day, up until 10:59 p.m. (Central Daylight Time) on May 13, 2013. Participants in 3M's Voluntary Investment Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plan and the 3M Savings Plan may instruct the trustee how to vote their shares via the Internet, by telephone, or by signing and returning the proxy card by 10:59 p.m. (Central Daylight Time) on May 9, 2013.

VOTE BY INTERNET <u>www.proxyvote.com</u> If you have Internet access, you may submit your proxy from any location in the world 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Have your proxy card or the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials in hand when you access the Web site and follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create an electronic voting instruction form.

VOTE BY TELEPHONE 1-800-690-6903 If you live in the United States, you may use any touch-tone telephone to vote your proxy toll-free 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Have your proxy card or the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials in hand when you call and then follow the instructions.

VOTE BY MAIL You may vote by signing your proxy card or, for shares held in street name, the voting instruction card included by your broker or nominee and mailing it. If you provide specific voting instructions, your shares will be voted as you instruct. If you sign, but do not provide instructions, your shares will be voted as the Board recommends. Mark, sign, and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope provided so that it is received by May 13, 2013 (by May 9, 2013 for participants in the 3M Voluntary Investment Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plan and the 3M Savings Plan), to 3M Company, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717.

VOTE IN PERSON If you are a stockholder of record, you may grant your proxy to 3M or vote in person at the Annual Meeting by requesting a ballot at the meeting. If you are a street name holder, you may vote in person at the Annual Meeting only if you obtain a legal proxy from your broker, trustee, or nominee.

All shares that have been properly voted and not revoked will be voted at the Annual Meeting.

Changing Your Vote

You may change your proxy instructions at any time prior to the vote at the Annual Meeting. You may enter a new vote by using the Internet or the telephone or by mailing a new proxy card or new voting instruction card bearing a later date (which will automatically revoke your earlier voting instructions). You may also accomplish this by granting a new proxy or by voting in person at the Annual Meeting.

Counting the Vote

In the election of directors, you may vote "FOR" or "AGAINST" one or more of the nominees or you may "ABSTAIN". Abstentions will have no effect on the outcome of the election of directors. For Proposals Nos. 2 through 5, you may vote "FOR", "AGAINST", or "ABSTAIN", except that if you "ABSTAIN", it has the same effect as a vote "AGAINST". If you sign your proxy card or broker voting instruction card with no further instructions, your shares will be voted in accordance with the recommendations of the Board. Shares held in your account in the 3M Voluntary Investment Plan and

Table of Contents

Employee Stock Ownership Plan or the 3M Savings Plan will be voted by the trustee as described in "Stockholders Entitled to Vote" beginning on page 2.

Representatives of Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc. will tabulate the votes and act as the inspectors of election.

Confidentiality

The Company's Board of Directors has a policy that all stockholder proxies, ballots, and tabulations that identify stockholders are to be maintained in confidence. No such document will be available for examination, and the identity and vote of any stockholder will not be disclosed, except as necessary to meet legal requirements and allow the inspectors of election to certify the results of the stockholder vote. The policy also provides that inspectors of election for stockholder votes must be independent and cannot be employees of the Company. Occasionally, stockholders provide written comments on their proxy card that may be forwarded to 3M management.

Results of the Vote

We will announce preliminary voting results for those items of business properly presented at the meeting and disclose the preliminary results for those items (or final results if available) in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within four business days of the Annual Meeting date. A news release with voting results will also be available on our Web site at www.3M.com/profile/pressbox/index.jhtml.

Delivery of Documents to Stockholders Sharing an Address

Securities and Exchange Commission rules allow us to deliver a single copy of an annual report and proxy statement to any household not participating in electronic proxy material delivery at which two or more stockholders reside, if we believe the stockholders are members of the same family. This rule benefits both you and the Company. We believe it eliminates irritating duplicate mailings that stockholders living at the same address receive and it reduces our printing and mailing costs. This rule applies to any annual reports, proxy statements, proxy statements combined with a prospectus or information statements. Each stockholder will continue to receive a separate proxy card or voting instruction card.

Your household may have received a single set of proxy materials this year. If you prefer to receive your own copy now or in future years, please request a duplicate set by calling 1-800-579-1639, by going to the following Web site: www.proxyvote.com, or by e-mail at sendmaterial@proxyvote.com, or in writing to 3M Company, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717. Alternatively, if your household received multiple sets of proxy materials this year, and members of your household who are entitled to receive proxy materials would all prefer to receive only a single set of proxy materials, you may submit such a request as specified in the preceding sentence.

If a broker or other nominee holds your shares, you may continue to receive some duplicate mailings. Certain brokers will eliminate duplicate account mailings by allowing stockholders to consent to such elimination, or through implied consent if a stockholder does not request continuation of duplicate mailings. Since not all brokers and nominees may offer stockholders the opportunity this year to eliminate duplicate mailings, you may need to contact your broker or nominee directly to discontinue duplicate mailings to your household.

List of Stockholders

The names of stockholders of record entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be available at the Annual Meeting and for ten days prior to the meeting for any purpose germane to the meeting, between

Table of Contents

the hours of 7:45 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. (Central Time), at our principal executive offices at 3M Center, Building 220-13E-34, St. Paul, Minnesota 55144-1000, by contacting the Secretary of the Company.

Cost of Proxy Solicitation

3M will pay for the cost of preparing, assembling, printing, mailing, and distributing these proxy materials. You will need to obtain your own Internet access if you choose to access the proxy materials and/or vote over the Internet. In addition to mailing these proxy materials, the solicitation of proxies or votes may be made in person, by telephone, or electronic communication by our directors, officers, and employees, who do not receive any additional compensation for these solicitation activities. We have hired Georgeson Shareholder Communications, Inc. to assist us in the distribution of proxy materials and the solicitation of votes. We will pay Georgeson Shareholder Communications, Inc. a fee of \$20,000 plus expenses for these services. We will also reimburse brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees, and fiduciaries for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for forwarding proxy and solicitation materials to beneficial owners of stock.

Transfer Agent

Our Transfer Agent is Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. All communications concerning stockholders of record accounts, including address changes, name changes, common stock transfer requirements, and similar issues can be handled by contacting Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. at 1-800-401-1952 (U.S.), 651-450-4064 (outside the U.S.), www.wellsfargo.com/shareownerservices, or in writing, P.O. Box 64854, St. Paul, MN 55164-0854.

8

Table of Contents

GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Board has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines that, along with the Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws, charters of the Board committees, and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, provide the framework for the governance of the Company. The Board's Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for overseeing and reviewing the Guidelines at least annually, and recommending any proposed changes to the Board for approval. The Corporate Governance Guidelines, the Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws, charters of the Board committees, and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics are available on our Web site at www.3M.com, under Investor Relations

Corporate Governance.

Executive Sessions

Independent directors regularly meet in executive sessions without the Chairman and CEO or other members of management present to review the criteria upon which the performance of the Chairman and CEO is based, to review the performance of the Chairman and CEO against those criteria, to ratify the compensation of the Chairman and CEO as approved by the Compensation Committee, and to discuss any other relevant matters.

Board's Leadership Structure

The Board's leadership structure is characterized by:

a combined Chairman of the Board and CEO:

a strong, independent, and highly experienced Lead Director with well-defined responsibilities that support the Board's oversight responsibilities;

a robust Committee structure comprised entirely of independent directors with oversight of various types of risks; and

an engaged and independent Board.

The Board of Directors believes that this leadership structure provides independent board leadership and engagement while deriving the benefit of having our CEO also serve as Chairman of the Board. As the individual with primary responsibility for managing the Company's day-to-day operations and with in-depth knowledge and understanding of the Company, he is best positioned to chair regular Board meetings as the directors discuss key business and strategic issues. Coupled with an independent Lead Director, this combined structure provides independent oversight while avoiding unnecessary confusion regarding the Board's oversight responsibilities and the day-to-day management of business operations.

The Board believes that adopting a rigid policy on whether to separate *or* combine the positions of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) would inhibit the Board's ability to provide for a leadership structure that would best serve stockholders. As a result, the Board has rejected adopting a policy permanently separating or combining the positions of Chairman and CEO in its Corporate Governance Guidelines, which are reviewed at least annually and available on our Web site at www.3M.com, under Investor Relations Corporate Governance. Instead, the Board adopted an approach that allows it, in representing the stockholders' best interests, to decide who should serve as Chairman or CEO, or both, under present or anticipated future circumstances.

The Board believes that combining the roles of CEO and Chairman contributes to an efficient and effective Board. The Board believes that to drive change and continuous improvement within the Company, tempered by respect for 3M's traditions and values, the CEO must have maximum authority.

Table of Contents

The CEO is primarily responsible for effectively leading significant change, improving operational efficiency, driving growth, managing the Company's day-to-day business, managing the various risks facing the Company, and reinforcing the expectation for all employees of continuing to build on 3M's century-old tradition of uncompromising honesty and integrity.

The Board believes that the Company's corporate governance measures ensure that strong, independent directors continue to effectively oversee the Company's management and key issues related to executive compensation, CEO evaluation and succession planning, strategy, risk, and integrity. The Corporate Governance Guidelines provide, in part, that (i) independent directors comprise a substantial majority of the Board; (ii) directors are elected annually with majority vote standard in uncontested director elections; (iii) only independent directors serve on the Audit, Compensation, Finance, and Nominating and Governance Committees; (iv) the committee chairs establish their respective agendas; (v) the Board and committees may retain their own advisors; (vi) the independent directors have complete access to management and employees; (vii) the independent directors meet in executive session without the CEO or other employees during each regular Board meeting; and (viii) the Board and each committee regularly conduct a self-evaluation to determine whether it and its committees function effectively. The Board has also designated one of its members to serve as Lead Director, with responsibilities (described in the next section) that are similar to those typically performed by an independent chairman.

Lead Independent Director

The 3M Board of Directors has designated one of its members to serve as a Lead Director, with responsibilities that are similar to those typically performed by an independent chairman ("Lead Director"). Michael L. Eskew was appointed Lead Director by the independent directors effective November 12, 2012, succeeding Dr. Vance Coffman who served as Lead Director since 2006. Michael Eskew is a highly experienced director, currently serving on the boards of United Parcel Service, Inc., International Business Machines Corp., and Eli Lilly and Company, and was the former Chairman and CEO of United Parcel Service, Inc. His responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following:

Presides at all meetings of the Board at which the Chairman is not present, including executive sessions of the independent directors;

Acts as a key liaison between the Chairman/CEO and the independent directors;

Approves the meeting agendas for the Board, and approves the meeting schedules to assure that there is sufficient time for discussion of all agenda items;

Has the authority to approve the materials to be delivered to the directors in advance of each Board meeting and provides feedback regarding the quality, quantity, and timeliness of those materials (this duty not only gives the Lead Director approval authority with respect to materials to be delivered to the directors in advance of each Board meeting but also provides a feedback mechanism so that the materials may be improved for future meetings);

Has the authority to call meetings of the independent directors;

Communicates Board member feedback to the Chairman/CEO (except that the chair of the Compensation Committee leads the discussion of the Chairman/CEO's performance and communicates the Board's evaluation of that performance to the Chairman/CEO);

If requested by major stockholders, ensures that he is available, when appropriate, for consultation and direct communication; and

Performs such other duties as requested by the independent directors.

Table of Contents

Communication with Directors

The Board of Directors has adopted the following process for stockholders and other interested parties to send communications to members of the Board. Stockholders and other interested parties may communicate with the Lead Director, the chairs of the Audit, Compensation, Finance, and Nominating and Governance Committees of the Board, or with any of our other independent directors, or all of them as a group, by sending a letter to the following address: Corporate Secretary, 3M Company, 3M Center, Building 220-13E-34, St. Paul, MN 55144-1000.

Director Independence

The Board of Directors has adopted a formal set of Director Independence Guidelines with respect to the determination of director independence, the full text of which is available on our Web site at www.3M.com, under Investor Relations Corporate Governance. In accordance with these Guidelines, a director or nominee for director must be determined to have no material relationship with the Company other than as a director. The Guidelines specify the criteria by which the independence of our directors will be determined, including strict guidelines for directors and their immediate families with respect to past employment or affiliation with the Company or its independent registered public accounting firm. The Guidelines also prohibit Audit Committee members from having any direct or indirect financial relationship with the Company, and restrict both commercial and not-for-profit relationships of all directors with the Company. Directors may not be given personal loans or extensions of credit by the Company, and all directors are required to deal at arm's length with the Company and its subsidiaries, and to disclose any circumstance that might be perceived as a conflict of interest.

In accordance with these Guidelines, the Board undertook its annual review of director independence. During this review, the Board considered transactions and relationships between each director, or any member of his or her immediate family and the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates in each of the most recent three completed fiscal years. The Board also considered whether there were any transactions or relationships between the Company and directors or any member of a director's immediate family (or any entity of which a director or an immediate family member is an executive officer, general partner, or significant equity holder). The Board considered that in the ordinary course of business, transactions may occur between the Company and its subsidiaries and companies at which some of our directors are or have been officers. In particular, with respect to each of the most recent three completed fiscal years, the Board evaluated for each of the directors, Linda G. Alvarado, Herbert L. Henkel, and Muhtar Kent, the annual amount of sales to 3M by the company where she or he serves (or served) as an executive officer, and purchases by that company from 3M, and determined that the amount of sales and purchases in each fiscal year was below one percent of the annual revenues of each of those companies, the threshold set forth in the Director Independence Guidelines. The Board also considered charitable contributions to not-for-profit organizations with which our directors or immediate family members are affiliated, none of which approached the threshold set forth in our Director Independence Guidelines.

As a result of this review, the Board affirmatively determined that the following directors are independent under these Guidelines: Linda G. Alvarado, Vance D. Coffman, Michael L. Eskew, W. James Farrell, Herbert L. Henkel, Muhtar Kent, Edward M. Liddy, Robert S. Morrison, Aulana L. Peters, and Robert J. Ulrich. The Board has also determined that no members of the Audit Committee received any compensation from the Company other than directors' fees. Inge G. Thulin, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer, is considered to not be independent because of his employment by the Company.

11

Table of Contents

Director Nomination Process

Role of the Nominating and Governance Committee

The Nominating and Governance Committee (the "Committee") identifies individuals who the Committee believes are qualified to become Board members in accordance with the Board Membership Criteria set forth below, and recommends selected individuals to the Board for nomination to stand for election at the next meeting of stockholders of the Company in which directors will be elected. In the event there is a vacancy on the Board between meetings of stockholders, the Committee seeks to identify individuals who the Committee believes are qualified to become Board members in accordance with the Board Membership Criteria set forth below, and may recommend one or more of such individuals for appointment to the Board.

Nominees Proposed by Stockholders for Consideration by the Committee

The Committee has a policy to consider properly submitted stockholder recommendations for candidates for membership on the Board of Directors. Stockholders proposing individuals for consideration by the Committee must include at least the following information about the proposed nominee: the proposed nominee's name, age, business or residence address, principal occupation or employment, and whether such person has given written consent to being named in the Proxy Statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected. Stockholders should send the required information about the proposed nominee to:

Corporate Secretary 3M Company 3M Center Building 220-13E-34 St. Paul, MN 55144-1000.

In order for an individual proposed by a stockholder to be considered by the Committee for recommendation as a Board nominee for the 2014 Annual Meeting, the Corporate Secretary must receive the proposal by November 27, 2013. Such proposals must be sent via registered, certified, or express mail (or other means that allows the stockholder to determine when the proposal was received by the Company). The Corporate Secretary will send properly submitted stockholder proposed nominations to the Committee Chair for consideration at a future Committee meeting. Individuals proposed by stockholders in accordance with these procedures will receive the same consideration that individuals identified to the Committee through other means receive.

Stockholder Nominations

In addition, 3M's Bylaws permit stockholders to nominate directors at an Annual Meeting of stockholders or at a special meeting at which directors are to be elected in accordance with the notice of meeting. Stockholders intending to nominate a person for election as a director must comply with the requirements set forth in the Company's Bylaws. With respect to nominations to be acted upon at our 2014 Annual Meeting, our Bylaws would require, among other things, that the Corporate Secretary receive written notice from the record stockholder no earlier than January 14, 2014, and no later than February 13, 2014. The notice must contain the information required by the Bylaws, a copy of which is available on our Web site at www.3M.com, under Investor Relations Corporate Governance. Nominations received after February 13, 2014, will not be acted upon at the 2014 Annual Meeting.

Board Membership Criteria

3M's Corporate Governance Guidelines contain Board Membership Criteria which include a list of skills and characteristics expected to be represented on 3M's Board. The Committee periodically

Table of Contents

reviews with the Board the appropriate skills and characteristics required of Board members given the current Board composition. It is the intent of the Board that the Board, itself, will be a high performance organization creating competitive advantage for the Company. To perform as such, the Board will be comprised of individuals who have distinguished records of leadership and success in their arena of activity and who will make substantial contributions to Board operations and effectively represent the interests of all stockholders. The Committee's and the Board's assessment of Board candidates includes, but is not limited to, consideration of:

- (i) Roles and contributions valuable to the business community;
- (ii)

 Personal qualities of leadership, character, judgment, and whether the candidate possesses and maintains throughout service on the Board a reputation in the community at large of integrity, trust, respect, competence, and adherence to the highest ethical standards:
- (iii)

 Relevant knowledge and diversity of background and experience in such things as business, manufacturing, technology, finance and accounting, marketing, international business, government, and the like; and
- (iv)
 Whether the candidate is free of conflicts and has the time required for preparation, participation, and attendance at all meetings.

In addition to these minimum requirements, the Committee will also evaluate whether the nominee's skills are complementary to the existing Board members' skills, the Board's needs for particular expertise in fields such as business, manufacturing, technology, finance and accounting, marketing, international business, government, or other areas of expertise, and assess the nominee's impact on Board dynamics and effectiveness.

Diversity

The Board of Directors values diversity as a factor in selecting nominees to serve on the Board because its experience is that diversity provides significant benefit to the Board and the Company. Although there is no specific policy on diversity, the Committee considers the Board Membership Criteria in selecting nominees for directors, including diversity of background and experience. Such considerations may include gender, race, national origin, functional background, executive or professional experience, and international experience.

Identification, Evaluation, and Selection of Nominees

The Committee periodically reviews the appropriate size and composition of the Board and anticipates future vacancies and needs of the Board. In the event the Committee recommends an increase in the size of the Board or a vacancy occurs, the Committee considers qualified nominees from several sources, including current Board members and nominees recommended by stockholders and other persons.

The Committee may from time to time retain a director search firm to help the Committee identify qualified director nominees for consideration by the Committee. The Committee retained SpencerStuart in 2012 to help identify future board candidates.

The Committee evaluates qualified director nominees at regular or special Committee meetings against the Board Membership Criteria described above then in effect and reviews qualified director nominees with the Board. The Committee and the Chairman of the Board interview candidates that meet the Board Membership Criteria and the Committee selects nominees that best suit the Board's current needs and recommends one or more of such individuals for election to the Board.

Table of Contents

Board's Role in Risk Oversight

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee through its charter the primary responsibility for the oversight of risks facing the Company. The charter provides that the Audit Committee shall "discuss policies and procedures with respect to risk assessment and risk management, the Company's major risk exposures and the steps management has taken to monitor and mitigate such exposures."

The Vice President and General Auditor, Corporate Auditing ("Auditor"), whose appointment and performance is reviewed and evaluated by the Audit Committee and who has direct reporting obligations to the Audit Committee, is responsible for leading the formal risk assessment and management process within the Company. The Auditor, through consultation with the Company's senior management, periodically assesses the major risks facing the Company and works with those executives responsible for managing each specific risk. The Auditor periodically reviews with the Audit Committee the major risks facing the Company and the steps management has taken to monitor and mitigate those risks. The Auditor's risk management report, which is provided in advance of the meeting, is reviewed with the entire Board by either the Chair of the Audit Committee or the Auditor. The executive responsible for managing a particular risk may also report to the full Board on how the risk is being managed and mitigated.

While the Board's primary oversight of risk is with the Audit Committee, the Board has delegated to other committees the oversight of risks within their areas of responsibility and expertise. For example, the Compensation Committee oversees the risks associated with the Company's compensation practices, including an annual review of the Company's risk assessment of its compensation policies and practices for its employees. The Finance Committee oversees risks associated with the Company's capital structure, its credit ratings and its cost of capital, long-term benefit obligations, and the Company's use of or investment in financial products, including derivatives used to manage risk related to foreign currencies, commodities, and interest rates. The Nominating and Governance Committee oversees the risks associated with the Company's overall governance and its succession planning process to understand that the Company has a slate of future, qualified candidates for key management positions.

The Board believes that its oversight of risks, primarily through delegation to the Audit Committee, but also through delegation to other committees to oversee specific risks within their areas of responsibility and expertise, and the sharing of information with the full Board, is appropriate for a diversified technology and manufacturing company like 3M. The chair of each committee that oversees risk provides a summary of the matters discussed with the committee to the full Board following each committee meeting. The minutes of each committee meeting are also provided to all Board members. The Board also believes its oversight of risk is enhanced by its current leadership structure (discussed above) because the CEO, who is ultimately responsible for the Company's management of risk, also chairs regular Board meetings, and with his in-depth knowledge and understanding of the Company, is best able to bring key business issues and risks to the Board's attention.

3M Business Conduct Policies

More than a century of operating with honesty and integrity has earned 3M trust from our customers, credibility with our communities, and dedication from our employees. All of our employees, including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Accounting Officer, are required to abide by 3M's business conduct policies to ensure that our business is conducted in a consistently legal and ethical manner. These policies form the foundation of a comprehensive process that includes compliance with corporate policies and procedures and a companywide focus on uncompromising honesty and integrity in every aspect of our operations. Our business conduct policies cover many topics, including antitrust and competition law, conflicts of interest, financial reporting, protection of

Table of Contents

confidential information, and compliance with all laws and regulations applicable to the conduct of our business.

Employees are required to report any conduct that they believe in good faith to be an actual or apparent violation of the business conduct policies. The Audit Committee has adopted procedures to receive, retain, and treat complaints received regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters, and to allow for the confidential and anonymous submission by employees or others of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters. Information on how to submit any such communications can be found on 3M's Web site at http://www.3M.com/busconducttrain/.

The Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for directors of the Company. This Code incorporates long-standing principles of conduct the Company and the Board follow to ensure the Company's business and the activities of the Board are conducted with integrity, adherence to the highest ethical standards, and in compliance with the law.

The Company's Business Conduct Policies for employees and the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors are available on our Web site at www.3M.com under Investor Relations Corporate Governance.

Related Person Transaction Policy and Procedures

The Board of Directors has adopted a written Related Person Transaction Policy which is administered by the Nominating and Governance Committee. This Policy applies to any transaction or series of transactions in which the Company or a subsidiary is a participant, the amount involved exceeds \$120,000, and a Related Person (as that term is defined in the Policy) has a direct or indirect material interest. Transactions that fall within this definition are referred to the Committee for approval, ratification, or other action. Based on its consideration of all of the relevant facts and circumstances, the Committee decides whether or not to approve a transaction and approves only those transactions that are in the best interests of the Company. In the course of its review and approval or ratification of a transaction, the Committee considers:

- 1. the nature of the Related Person's interest in the transaction;
- the material terms of the transaction, including whether the transaction is on terms no less favorable than terms generally available to an unaffiliated third party under the same or similar circumstances;
- 3. the significance of the transaction to the Related Person;
- 4. the significance of the transaction to the Company;
- 5. whether the transaction would impair the judgment of a director or executive officer to act in the best interest of the Company; and
- 6. any other matters the Committee deems appropriate.

Any Committee member who is a Related Person with respect to a transaction under review may not participate in the deliberations or vote respecting such approval or ratification; provided, however, that such director may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the Committee which considers the transaction.

Policy on Adoption of a Rights Plan

In 2002 and 2003, a 3M stockholder submitted a shareholder proposal to 3M regarding the approval process for adopting a stockholders' rights plan (also known as a "poison pill"). 3M does not have a rights plan and is not currently considering adopting one. The Board continues to believe, however, that there may be circumstances under which adoption of a rights plan would be necessary to give the Board

Table of Contents

the negotiating power and leverage to obtain the best result for 3M stockholders in the context of a takeover effort.

Following consideration of the favorable vote the stockholder proposal received and in light of this belief, the Board adopted and has reaffirmed a statement of policy on this topic. The Board's policy is that it will only adopt a rights plan if either (1) stockholders have approved adoption of the rights plan or (2) the Board in its exercise of its fiduciary responsibilities, including a majority of the independent members of the Board, makes a determination that, under the circumstances existing at the time, it is in the best interests of 3M's stockholders to adopt a rights plan without the delay in adoption that would come from the time reasonably anticipated to seek stockholder approval.

The Board has directed the Nominating and Governance Committee to review this policy statement on an annual basis and to report to the Board on any recommendations it may have concerning the policy. The terms of the policy, as in effect, are included in 3M's published Corporate Governance Guidelines and its Proxy Statement.

Table of Contents

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

The Board currently has eleven directors and the following four Committees: Audit, Compensation, Finance, and Nominating and Governance. George Buckley retired from the Board when his term expired on May 8, 2012. On February 5, 2013, the Board of Directors elected Muhtar Kent as a director and appointed him as a member of the Audit and Finance committees effective April 1, 2013. The membership during 2012 and the function of each Committee are described below.

During 2012, the Board of Directors held six regularly scheduled meetings and two telephonic meetings. Overall attendance at Board and committee meetings was 98 percent. Seven directors attended 100 percent and four directors attended an average of approximately 94 percent of the meetings of the Board and Board committees on which they served in 2012.

The Company has a long-standing policy that directors are expected to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders unless extenuating circumstances prevent them from attending. All directors attended last year's Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The Board and each Committee conducted an evaluation of their performance in 2012.

Name of Non-Employee Director	Audit	Compensation	Finance	Nominating and Governance
Linda G. Alvarado	X		X	
Vance D. Coffman		X *		X
Michael L. Eskew	X		X *	
W. James Farrell	X		X	
Herbert L. Henkel	X *			X
Edward M. Liddy		X		X
Robert S. Morrison		X		X *
Aulana L. Peters		X	X	
Robert J. Ulrich		X		X

X = Committee Member; * = Chair

Audit Committee

In 2012, the Audit Committee met eight times. The Committee assists the Board in its oversight of the integrity of the Company's financial statements, compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the qualifications, independence, and performance of the Company's independent registered public accounting firm (the "Independent Accounting Firm"), the performance of the Company's internal auditing department, and furnishes a report for inclusion in the Company's Proxy Statement. In addition, the Committee:

Reviews the Company's annual audited and quarterly consolidated financial statements;

Reviews the Company's financial reporting process and disclosure and internal controls and procedures, including major issues regarding accounting principles and financial statement presentation, and critical accounting policies to be used in the consolidated financial statements;

Reviews and discusses with management and the Independent Accounting Firm the Company's internal controls report and the Independent Accounting Firm's audit of internal controls over financial reporting;

By delegation to the chair, reviews earnings press releases prior to issuance;

17

Table of Contents

Appoints, oversees, and approves compensation of the Independent Accounting Firm;

Reviews with the Independent Accounting Firm the scope of the annual audit, including fees and staffing, and approves all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the Independent Accounting Firm;

Reviews findings and recommendations of the Independent Accounting Firm and management's response to the recommendations of the Independent Accounting Firm;

Discusses policies with respect to risk assessment and risk management, the Company's major risk exposures, and the steps management has taken to monitor and mitigate such exposures;

Periodically obtain reports from the Company's senior internal auditing executive, who has direct reporting obligations to the Committee, on the results of internal audits; and

Periodically obtain reports from the Company's Chief Compliance Officer, who has direct reporting obligations to the Committee, on compliance, and at least annually, on the implementation and effectiveness of the Company's compliance and ethics program.

The Board of Directors has determined that all of the Audit Committee members (including Muhtar Kent, who joins the Audit Committee on April 1, 2013) are "independent," "financially literate," and have "accounting or related financial management expertise" under the New York Stock Exchange listing standards. The Board has also determined that all of the Audit Committee members Herbert L. Henkel (chair), Linda G. Alvarado, Michael L. Eskew, W. James Farrell, and Muhtar Kent are "audit committee financial experts" as that term is defined by applicable Securities and Exchange Commission regulations. The charter of the Audit Committee is available at www.3M.com under Investor Relations Corporate Governance Committee Charters.

Compensation Committee

In 2012, the Compensation Committee met seven times. The Committee reviews the Company's compensation practices and policies, annually reviews and approves (subject to ratification by the independent directors of the Board) the compensation for the CEO, annually reviews and approves the compensation for the other senior executives, evaluates CEO performance, reviews and discusses with management of the Company the Compensation Discussion and Analysis prepared in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission's disclosure rules for executive compensation, and furnishes a report for inclusion in the Company's Proxy Statement. In addition, the Committee:

Reviews disclosures in the Company's Proxy Statement regarding advisory votes on executive compensation and the frequency of such votes;

Approves the adoption, amendment, and termination of incentive compensation and deferred compensation programs for employees of the Company;

Approves, subject to ratification by the independent directors of the Board, employment agreements and severance arrangements for the CEO, as appropriate;

Approves employment agreements and severance arrangements for the senior executives of the Company (other than the CEO), as appropriate;

Interprets and supervises the administration of the Company's stock and long-term incentive compensation programs, and determines the employees who receive awards and the size of their awards under such programs;

Reviews and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning the design of the pension and other postretirement benefit plans that have a material financial impact upon the Company;

18

Table of Contents

Annually reviews a risk assessment of the Company's compensation policies and practices for its employees; and

Periodically reviews human resource issues relating to the Company's policies and practices with respect to workforce diversity and equal employment opportunities.

The Board of Directors has determined that all Compensation Committee members are "independent" under the New York Stock Exchange listing standards, including the listing standards applicable to compensation committee members. The Board has also determined that each Compensation Committee member qualifies as a "Non-Employee Director" under Rule 16b-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that each member (except Robert S. Morrison due to his service in 2005 as interim CEO), qualifies as an "outside director" under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a result, Mr. Morrison may participate in the discussion, but cannot vote on the Committee's decisions involving performance-based compensation. The charter of the Compensation Committee is available at www.3M.com under Investor Relations Corporate Governance Committee Charters.

Finance Committee

In 2012, the Finance Committee met five times. The Committee assists the Board with its oversight of the Company's financial structure, including its overall capital structure, sources and uses of funds, the Company's financial condition and capital strategy, and financial risk management. In addition, the Committee:

Reviews and recommends for approval by the Board the dividend policy and the declaration of dividends or other forms of distributions on the Company's stock, such as stock splits in the form of a stock dividend;

Reviews and recommends for approval by the Board the repurchase of the Company's stock;

Reviews and recommends for approval by the Board the Company's short- and long-term borrowings;

Reviews and recommends for approval by the Board the registration and issuance of the Company's debt or equity securities, except in the case of the issuance of debt or equity securities in connection with a merger or acquisition transaction which is presented to the Board;

Periodically reviews the Company's ratings from credit rating agencies;

Reviews and recommends for approval by the Board an annual capital expenditure budget and revisions to that budget;

Reviews and recommends for approval by the Board capital expenditures in excess of \$75,000,000;

Reviews and evaluates any risks associated with the Company's use of or investment in financial products, including derivatives used to manage risk related to foreign currencies, commodity prices, and interest rates;

Periodically reviews the Company's insurance coverage; and

Periodically reviews the funding of the Company's pension and other benefit plans.

The Board of Directors has determined that all Finance Committee members are "independent" under the New York Stock Exchange listing standards. The charter of the Finance Committee is available at www.3M.com under Investor Relations Corporate Governance Committee Charters.

Table of Contents

Nominating and Governance Committee

In 2012, the Nominating and Governance Committee met six times. The Committee establishes Board membership criteria, assists the Board by identifying individuals qualified to become Board members, recommends to the Board matters of corporate governance, facilitates the annual review of the performance of the Board and its Committees, and periodically reviews CEO and management succession plans. In addition, the Committee:

Selects and recommends candidates to the Board of Directors to be submitted for election at the Annual Meeting and candidates to fill any vacancies on the Board, including stockholder nominees for director (submitted in accordance with the Company's Bylaws). The Committee considers all candidates in light of the Board membership criteria adopted by the Board of Directors;

Reviews and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning the composition and size of the Board and its Committees, Board membership criteria, frequency of meetings, and recommends to the Board changes in compensation for nonemployee directors;

Reviews the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines at least annually, and recommends any proposed changes to the Board for approval;

Develops and recommends to the Board standards to be applied in making determinations on the types of relationships that constitute material relationships between the Company and a director for purposes of determining director independence;

Reviews and approves or ratifies any transaction between the Company and any related person, which is required to be disclosed under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission;

Develops and recommends to the Board for its approval an annual self-assessment process of the Board and its Committees and oversees the process;

Reviews periodically with the Chairman/CEO succession plans relating to positions held by elected corporate officers, and makes recommendations to the Board with respect to the selection of individuals to occupy these positions;

Periodically reviews the corporate contribution program and the activities of the 3M Foundation; and

Periodically reviews the Company's positions and engagement on important public policy issues affecting its business, including the political contributions of 3M and its Political Action Committee.

The Board of Directors has determined that all Nominating and Governance Committee members are "independent" under the New York Stock Exchange listing standards. The charter of the Nominating and Governance Committee is available at www.3M.com under Investor Relations Corporate Governance Committee Charters.

Table of Contents

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION AND STOCK OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES

The Nominating and Governance Committee periodically receives reports on the status of Board compensation in relation to other large U.S. companies and is responsible for recommending to the Board changes in compensation for nonemployee directors. In developing its recommendations, the Committee is guided by the following goals: compensation should fairly pay directors for work required in a company of 3M's size and scope, a significant portion of the total compensation should be paid in common stock to align directors' interests with the long-term interests of stockholders, and the structure of the compensation should be simple and transparent. Periodically, at the request of the Committee, Frederic W. Cook & Co., Inc. conducts a survey of director compensation at other large U.S. companies and provides expert advisory support to the Committee on the compensation of nonemployee directors. Neither the Company nor the Nominating and Governance Committee has any arrangement with any other compensation consultant who has a role in determining or recommending the amount or form of director compensation. Nonemployee directors' compensation includes the following compensation elements:

Annual Compensation In May 2012, the Nominating and Governance Committee considered a board compensation study prepared by Frederic W. Cook & Co., Inc. As a result of that study, the Committee recommended no increase in nonemployee director compensation. For 2012, the annual compensation for nonemployee directors was \$245,000. Approximately 47 percent of the annual compensation (or \$115,000) is payable in cash in four quarterly installments and approximately 53 percent of the annual compensation (or \$130,000) is payable in common stock after the Annual Meeting. In addition, the chairs of the Finance and Nominating and Governance Committees each receive an additional annual fee of \$15,000 and the chairs of the Audit and Compensation Committees each receive an additional annual fee of \$20,000. The Lead Director receives an additional annual fee of \$25,000. There are no meeting fees. In lieu of the cash fees, a director may elect to receive common stock of the Company. Nonemployee directors may also voluntarily defer all or part of their annual cash fees or stock award until they cease to be members of the Board.

Deferred Stock For directors who have made an election to defer their annual stock award or annual cash fees into a common stock equivalents account ("Deferred Stock"), the Company shall credit their account with a number of 3M common stock equivalents (including fractional share equivalents) equal to the number of actual shares of 3M common stock which could have been purchased with such deferred amounts on the first day of the calendar quarter using the closing price of 3M common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the last business day immediately preceding such date. 3M common stock equivalents having a value equal to dividends paid on 3M common stock shall be credited to such an account on each dividend payment date. The share equivalents shall be determined by using the closing price of 3M common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the sixth business day preceding the dividend record date. The Deferred Stock is fully vested upon grant but does not have voting rights. Appropriate adjustments shall be made to the accounts for stock splits, stock dividends, merger, consolidation, payment of dividends in other than cash, and similar circumstances affecting 3M common stock. The Deferred Stock will be distributed in 3M common stock to nonemployee directors beginning on January 1 of the year following the year in which they leave the Board in a lump sum or up to ten annual installments pursuant to their deferral elections.

All Other Compensation The column below showing "All Other Compensation" includes matching gifts. The nonemployee directors are eligible to participate in the Company's matching gift program on the same terms as 3M employees. Under this program, the 3M Foundation will match up to a total of \$10,000 a year in contributions by the director to eligible institutions of higher education.

The total 2012 compensation of our nonemployee directors is shown in the following table:

N. J. D. A	Fees Earned Or Paid in Cash	Stock Awards	All Other Compensation	Total
Nonemployee Directors	(\$)(1)	(\$)(2)	(\$)(3)	(\$)
Linda G. Alvarado	115,000	130,000		245,000
Vance D. Coffman*	156,640	130,000	10,000	296,640
Michael L. Eskew*	133,360	130,000	1,500	264,860
W. James Farrell	115,000	130,000		245,000
Herbert L. Henkel*	135,000	130,000		265,000
Edward M. Liddy	115,000	130,000		245,000
Robert S. Morrison*	130,000	130,000	10,000	270,000
Aulana L. Peters	115,000	130,000	10,000	255,000
Robert J. Ulrich	115,000	130,000		245,000

Committee Chair

- (1) This column reports the amount of all fees earned or paid in cash for services as a director.
- This column represents the grant date fair value of the stock awards made in 2012, computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation Stock Compensation. The Company does not grant stock options to nonemployee directors except that Robert S. Morrison has 92,632 fully-vested stock options outstanding, which were previously granted to him as interim Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company from June 30 to December 6, 2005. Since all stock awards vest on the grant date, there are no unvested stock awards outstanding at year end.
- This column includes participation in the Company's matching gift program with Vance D. Coffman, Robert S. Morrison, and Aulana Peters participating at the \$10,000 level, and Michael L. Eskew participating at the \$1,500 level.

Stock Ownership Guidelines. The Board requires that each director retain the stock portion (currently valued at \$130,000) of the annual compensation issued on or after October 1, 2007, until the director leaves the Board. Information regarding accumulated stock and deferred stock units is set forth in the section entitled "Information on Stock Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers."

PROPOSALS TO BE VOTED ON

PROPOSAL NO. 1

ELECTION OF THE ELEVEN DIRECTORS IDENTIFIED IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT

At the 2013 Annual Meeting, eleven directors are to be elected to hold office until the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and until their successors have been elected and qualified. All nominees are presently 3M directors who were elected by stockholders at the 2012 Annual Meeting, except Muhtar Kent who was elected to the Board in February 2013 and who is standing for election for the first time. The independent directors who are members of the Nominating and Governance Committee, working with a third-party search firm, identified and the Committee recommended Mr. Kent to the Board. We expect each nominee for election as a director to be able to serve if elected. If any nominee is not able to serve, proxies will be voted in favor of the remainder of those nominated and may be voted for substitute nominees, unless the Board chooses to reduce the number of directors serving on the Board. Each nominee elected as a director will continue in office until his or her successor has been elected and qualified, or until his or her earlier death, resignation, or retirement.

The Nominating and Governance Committee reviewed the Board Membership Criteria (described in the section of the Proxy Statement entitled "Director Nomination Process") and the specific experience, qualifications, attributes, and skills of each nominee, including membership(s) on the board of directors of other public companies. The following pages contain biographical and other information about the nominees. Following each nominee's biographical information, we have provided information concerning the particular experience, qualifications, attributes and/or skills that led the Nominating and Governance Committee and the Board to determine that each nominee should serve as a Director. In addition, all of our Directors serve or have served on boards and board committees (including as committee chairs) of other public companies, which the Board believes provides them with additional board leadership and governance experience, exposure to best practices, and substantial knowledge and skills that further enhance the functioning of our Board.

Nominees for Director:

Linda G. Alvarado, 61, President and Chief Executive Officer, Alvarado Construction, Inc., a Denver-based commercial general contractor, construction management and development company. In 1976, Ms. Alvarado founded Alvarado Construction, Inc. and has overseen the growth of that enterprise as a commercial general contracting and design/build development firm conducting business across the United States and internationally.

Director since: 2000

Other current directorships: Pitney Bowes, Inc.

Other directorships in the past five years: Lennox International Inc., QWEST Communications International, Inc., and The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.

Ms. Alvarado's leadership role and experiences in establishing and building successful businesses, including founding and serving as President and Chief Executive Officer of Alvarado Construction, Inc., President of Palo Alto, Inc., which owns and operates numerous YUM! Brands restaurants in several states, and co-owner of the Colorado Rockies Major League Baseball Club, her skills in operations, financial and audit matters, and her experiences as a director at the public companies listed above, qualify her to serve as a director of 3M.

Vance D. Coffman, 68, Retired Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, Lockheed Martin Corporation, a high technology aerospace and defense company. Dr. Coffman served in various executive capacities at Lockheed Martin Corporation before becoming Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in 1998. He retired as Chief Executive Officer in 2004 and as Chairman of the Board in 2005.

Director since: 2002

Other current directorships: Amgen Inc. (Lead Director) and Deere & Company

Dr. Coffman's Bachelor of Science degree in Aerospace Engineering from Iowa State University and his Masters and Doctoral degrees in Aeronautics and Astronautics from Stanford University and his various leadership roles and experiences at Lockheed Martin, including serving as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, his role in the integration of Lockheed and Martin Marietta Corporations, his understanding of the challenges of managing a complex global organization, the breadth of his experiences and skills in business and financial matters, and his experiences as a director at the public companies listed above, qualify him to serve as a director of 3M.

Michael L. Eskew, 63, Retired Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, United Parcel Service, Inc., a provider of specialized transportation and logistics services. Mr. Eskew was appointed Executive Vice President in 1999 and Vice Chairman in 2000 before becoming Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of UPS in January 2002. He retired as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer at the end of 2007 but remained as a director of

Director since: 2003

Other current directorships: United Parcel Service, Inc., International Business Machines Corp., and Eli Lilly

Mr. Eskew's degree in industrial engineering from Purdue University, his leadership roles and experiences at United Parcel Service, including serving as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, his knowledge of and extensive experiences in global logistics, his skills in financial and audit matters, and his experiences as a director at the public companies listed above, qualify him to serve as a director of 3M.

W. James Farrell, 70, Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Illinois Tool Works Inc., a multi-national manufacturer of highly engineered fasteners, components, assemblies and systems. Mr. Farrell served in various executive capacities since joining ITW before becoming Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in 1996. He retired as Chief Executive Officer in 2005 and as Chairman in 2006.

Director since: 2006

Other current directorships: Abbott Laboratories and The Allstate Corporation

Other directorships in the past five years: United Continental Holdings, Inc.

Mr. Farrell's Bachelor of Science degree in electrical engineering from the University of Detroit, his leadership roles and experiences at Illinois Tool Works, including serving as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer for over ten years, his knowledge of and extensive experiences in global diversified manufacturing, his operational expertise and skills in financial and audit matters, and his experiences as a director at the public companies listed above, qualify him to serve as a director of 3M.

Herbert L. Henkel, 64, *Operating Partner, Advent International Corporation, a private equity investment firm.* Retired Chairman of the Board, Ingersoll-Rand plc, a manufacturer of industrial products and components. Mr. Henkel retired as Ingersoll-Rand's Chief Executive Officer, a position he held since October 1999, on February 4, 2010, and retired as Chairman of the Board on June 3, 2010. Mr. Henkel served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Ingersoll-Rand from April 1999 to October 1999. Mr. Henkel served in various leadership roles at Textron, Inc., including its President and Chief Operating Officer from 1998-1999.

Director since: 2007

Other current directorships: The Allstate Corporation and C. R. Bard, Inc. (Lead Director)

Other directorships in the past five years: Visteon Corporation

Mr. Henkel's Bachelor's and Master's degrees in Engineering from Polytechnic University of New York and Masters of Business Administration from the Lubin School at Pace University, his leadership roles and experiences at Textron, Inc. and Ingersoll-Rand, including serving as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, his knowledge of and extensive experiences in engineering, manufacturing, management, sales and marketing in a variety of industries, his skills in financial and audit matters, and his experiences as a director at the public companies listed above, qualify him to serve as a director of 3M.

Muhtar Kent, 60, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, The Coca-Cola Company, the world's largest beverage company. He has held the position of Chairman of the Board since April 23, 2009, and the position of Chief Executive Officer since July 1, 2008. From December 2006 through June 2008, Mr. Kent served as President and Chief Operating Officer of The Coca-Cola Company. From January 2006 through December 2006, Mr. Kent served as President of Coca-Cola International and was elected Executive Vice President of The Coca-Cola Company in February 2006. From May 2005 through January 2006, he was President and Chief Operating Officer of The Coca-Cola Company's North Asia, Eurasia and Middle East Group, an organization serving a broad and diverse region that included China, Japan, and Russia. Mr. Kent is co-chair of The Consumer Goods Forum, a fellow of the Foreign Policy Association, a member of the Business Roundtable, a past Chairman of the U.S.-China Business Council, and Chairman Emeritus of the U.S. ASEAN Business Council. He was also appointed as a member of the Eminent Persons Group for ASEAN by President Obama and Secretary of State Clinton.

New Nominee

Mr. Kent's Bachelor of Science in Economics from Hull University, England, and Master of Science in Administrative Sciences from London City University, his extensive leadership roles and experiences at The Coca-Cola Company across multiple geographies, and his extensive international experience not only at The Coca-Cola Company but also in the organizations mentioned above, qualify him to serve as a director of 3M.

Edward M. Liddy, 67, *Partner, Clayton, Dubilier & Rice, LLC, a private equity investment firm*, from April to September 2008 and rejoined the firm in January 2010. At the request of the Secretary of the U.S. Department of the Treasury, Mr. Liddy served as Interim Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of American International Group, Inc. (AIG), a global insurance and financial services holding company, from September 2008 until August 2009. Mr. Liddy served as Chairman of the Board of The Allstate Corporation, a personal lines insurer, from January 1999 to April 2008 and as its Chief Executive Officer from January 1999 to December 2006.

Director since: 2000

Other current directorships: Abbott Laboratories, AbbVie, Inc., and The Boeing Company

Other directorships in the past five years: The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Mr. Liddy's undergraduate degree from Catholic University and his Masters of Business Administration from George Washington University, his leadership roles and experiences at Sears, Roebuck and Co. as Chief Financial Officer from 1992-1994 and at Allstate as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, his knowledge of and extensive experiences in insurance, his expertise and knowledge of financial and audit matters, and his experiences as a director at the public companies listed above, qualify him to serve as a director of 3M.

Robert S. Morrison, 70, *Retired Vice Chairman of PepsiCo, Inc., a processor of packaged foods and beverages.* Mr. Morrison served as Vice Chairman of PepsiCo, Inc. from 2001 to February 2003. From 1997 until the 2001 merger with PepsiCo, Mr. Morrison was Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of The Quaker Oats Company. Mr. Morrison served in various leadership roles at Kraft Foods, Inc. from 1983 to 1997, including its Chief Executive Officer from 1994-1997. From June 30 to December 6, 2005, Mr. Morrison served as interim Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of 3M Company.

Director since: 2002

Other current directorships: Aon Corporation and Illinois Tool Works Inc. (Non-executive Chairman) Mr. Morrison's Bachelor of Science degree from the College of the Holy Cross and his Masters of Business Administration from the Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania, his leadership roles and experiences at Kraft Foods, The Quaker Oats Company, and PepsiCo, his knowledge of and extensive experiences in managing global consumer products companies, his skills in business and financial matters, and his experiences as a director at the public companies listed above, qualify him to serve as a director of 3M.

Aulana L. Peters, 71, Retired Partner, Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP. Mrs. Peters is a retired partner of the law firm of Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher where she was a partner from 1980 to 1984 and 1988 to 2000. From 1984 to 1988, she served as a Commissioner of the Securities and Exchange Commission. From January 2001 to April 2002, Mrs. Peters served as a member of the Public Oversight Board ("POB") of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mrs. Peters has also served as a member of the Steering Committee for Financial Accounting Standards Board's Financial Reporting Project and a member of the POB's Blue Ribbon Panel on Audit Effectiveness. She was also a member of the International Public Interest Oversight Board which oversees the standard setting process of the International Federation of Accountants for auditing, assurance, independence, and ethics standards. Currently, Mrs. Peters serves on the U.S. Comptroller General's Accountability Advisory Panel.

Director since: 1990

Other current directorships: Deere & Company and Northrop Grumman Corporation

Other directorships in the past five years: Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc.

Mrs. Peters' law degree from the University of Southern California, her experiences as a partner at Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher and as a Commissioner of the Securities and Exchange Commission, her extensive experience and skills in accounting and audit matters and her experiences as a director at the public companies listed above, qualify her to serve as a director of 3M.

Inge G. Thulin, 59, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of 3M Company. President and Chief Executive Officer of 3M Company from February 24, 2012, to May 8, 2012. Mr. Thulin served as the Company's Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer from May 2011 to February 2012, with responsibility for 3M's six business segments and International Operations. Prior to that, he was Executive Vice President of International Operations from 2004 to 2011. Under his leadership, international sales grew to nearly \$20 billion and today represent two-thirds of 3M's sales. Mr. Thulin also has held numerous leadership positions in Asia Pacific, Europe and Middle East, and across multiple businesses.

Director since: 2012

Other directorships in the past five years: The Toro Company

Mr. Thulin's degrees in Marketing and Economics from Gothenburg University, his 32 year career at 3M with leadership roles across multiple geographies and businesses, his in-depth understanding of 3M's global businesses, his expertise and knowledge of managing a large global corporation across multiple industries and markets, his skills in business and financial matters, and his experiences as a director at the public company listed above, qualify him to serve as a director of 3M.

26

Table of Contents

Robert J. Ulrich, 69, *Retired Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Target Corporation, an operator of large-format general merchandise and food discount stores.* Mr. Ulrich began his retailing career as a merchandising trainee in Target's department store division (Dayton Hudson) in 1967 and advanced through various management positions. He became Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Target Stores in 1987 and was elected Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Target Corporation in 1994. Mr. Ulrich retired as Target's Chief Executive Officer on May 1, 2008, and retired as Chairman of the Board on January 31, 2009.

Director since: 2008

Mr. Ulrich's bachelor of arts degree from the University of Minnesota, his leadership roles and experiences at Dayton Hudson and Target Corporation, his knowledge of and extensive experiences in retailing and in building Target Stores into the second-largest retailer in the United States, and his skills in business and financial matters, qualify him to serve as a director of 3M.

Recommendation of the Board

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" the election of these nominees as directors. Proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will be voted "FOR" these nominees unless a stockholder indicates otherwise in voting the proxy.

27

Table of Contents

PROPOSAL NO. 2

RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR 2013

The Audit Committee has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm to audit the Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2013. If the stockholders do not ratify the selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the Audit Committee will reconsider the selection.

During 2012, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP served as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm and also provided certain tax and other audit-related services. For a description of those services and the fees paid, see section entitled "Fees of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm."

Representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are expected to attend the Annual Meeting where they will be available to respond to questions and, if they desire, to make a statement.

Recommendation of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" the ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for 2013. Proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will be voted "FOR" ratification unless a stockholder indicates otherwise in voting the proxy.

PROPOSAL NO. 3

ADVISORY APPROVAL OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

As required by Section 14A of the Securities Exchange Act, the Company is providing its stockholders with the opportunity to approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of its executives as described in this Proxy Statement. This is the third year that the Company is asking stockholders to vote on this type of proposal, known as a "say-on-pay" proposal. The Board has determined to provide the opportunity for stockholders to vote on this type of proposal on an annual basis. At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on May 8, 2012 (the "2012 Annual Meeting"), approximately 94 percent of the shares that were voted on last year's say-on-pay proposal voted to approve the compensation of the Company's Named Executive Officers as disclosed in last year's Proxy Statement.

Thus, the Company is submitting to stockholders the following resolution for vote by our stockholders:

"RESOLVED, that the stockholders approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of the Company's Named Executive Officers as disclosed in this Proxy Statement pursuant to the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (including in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the accompanying compensation tables and related narrative)."

As described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis portion of this Proxy Statement, 2012 was a year marked by the transition to new leadership and the articulation of new long-term goals that set the Company on a course to continuing long-term sustainable shareholder value. The Company delivered solid financial results for the year, which resulted in increased annual incentive compensation for three of the Named Executive Officers and an above-target payout of the 2010 performance shares granted to all of the Named Executive Officers (which was due in large part to the Company's outstanding financial results during 2010, the first year of the three-year performance period for such performance shares). 3M stockholders shared in this success by realizing a total shareholder return on their shares of 3M common stock of 16.7 percent during 2012.

Table of Contents

While the Board of Directors and the Compensation Committee intend to carefully consider the results of the voting on this proposal when making future decisions regarding executive compensation, the vote is not binding on the Company or the Board and is advisory in nature.

Recommendation of the Board

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" this proposal for the reasons discussed above. Proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will be voted "FOR" this proposal unless a stockholder indicates otherwise in voting the proxy.

PROPOSAL NO. 4

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL ON ACTION BY WRITTEN CONSENT

3M has received a stockholder proposal from James McRitchie, 9295 Yorkship Court, Elk Grove, California 95758, owner of 50 shares of 3M common stock (the "Proponent"). The Proponent has requested that the Company include the following proposal and supporting statement (*in italics*) in its Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The proposal may be voted on at the Annual Meeting only if properly presented by the Proponent or the Proponent's representative.

Stockholder Proposal:

Resolved, Shareholders request that our board of directors undertake such steps as may be necessary to permit written consent by shareholders entitled to cast the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize the action at a meeting at which all shareholders entitled to vote thereon were present and voting. This written consent includes all issues that shareholders may propose. This written consent is to be consistent with applicable law and consistent with giving shareholders the fullest power to act by written consent consistent with applicable law.

The shareholders of Wet Seal (WTSLA) successfully used written consent to replace certain underperforming directors in October 2012. This proposal topic also won majority shareholder support at 13 major companies in a single year. This included 67%-support at both Allstate and Sprint. Hundreds of major companies enable shareholder action by written consent.

This proposal should also be evaluated in the context of our Company's overall corporate governance as reported in 2012:

GMI/The Corporate Library, an independent investment research firm, rated our company "D" with "High Governance Risk" and "High Concern" in Executive Pay a whopping \$25 million for our former CEO George Buckley. GMI said Mr. Buckley will retire comfortable as he was entitled to a potential payment of \$53 million following his retirement and had \$13 million in non-qualified deferred pay plans.

Directors Vance Coffman, Robert Morrison, Linda Alvarado, Edward Liddy and Aulana Peters each had 10 to 22 years long-tenure. GMI said long-tenured directors could form relationships that may compromise their independence and therefore hinder their ability to provide effective oversight. Long-tenured directors controlled 8 of the 14 seats on our most important board committees. Plus 5 of our directors received high negative votes of 10% to 18% and these directors controlled 4 of the 5 seats on our executive pay committee (not a surprise) and 3 of the 5 seats on our nomination committee. Ms. Peters received our highest negative votes -18%. By comparison some of our directors received less than 2% in negative votes.

Vance Coffman, our Lead Director, was negatively flagged by GMI because Bristol-Myers Squibb settled an SEC lawsuit alleging substantial accounting fraud while Mr. Coffman was chairman of Bristol-Myers' audit committee. James Farrell, on our audit committee, was negatively flagged by GMI due to his involvement with the bankruptcy of UAL Corporation. Michael Eskew, also on our audit committee, was potentially over-extended with seats on a total of 4 boards—all rated "D" by GMI.

Table of Contents

Please encourage our board to respond positively to this proposal to strengthen our corporate governance and protect shareholder value:

Right to Act by Written Consent Proposal 4*

Board's Statement Opposing the Proposal

After careful consideration, and for the following reasons, the Board believes that the proposal is not in the best interests of the Company or its stockholders, and the Board recommends voting "AGAINST" this proposal.

- The Board believes matters that are sufficiently important to be subject to a stockholder vote should be communicated to all stockholders who should be given the opportunity to discuss the proposed action and vote on it at an annual or special meeting. 3M's governing documents require actions subject to a stockholder vote be considered at a meeting of stockholders. This requirement assures that all stockholders receive advance notice of and have an opportunity to discuss the proposed action. This process helps ensure that all stockholders have time to consider the proposed action and all points of view before a vote. In contrast, the proposed action by written consent would allow critical actions to be approved without advance notice to all stockholders or the Company and without benefit of a discussion at a meeting of stockholders. We believe this proposal, if adopted, could disenfranchise many stockholders—particularly smaller stockholders—and may deprive them of these rights and protections while enabling other short-term or special interest investors to advance proposals that are not in the best interests of all stockholders. Further, actions by written consent could result in duplicative or contradictory written consents being circulated at the same time, disrupting management and confusing stockholders.
- The Company's stockholders have channels outside the Annual Meeting cycle to raise important matters. The Company's amended Bylaws already give stockholders holding at least 25 percent of the outstanding common shares the ability to call a special meeting. This ability to call a special meeting allows stockholders to initiate action without waiting for the Company's next Annual Meeting, making action by written consent unnecessary to facilitate prompt action by stockholders. A special meeting is preferable to action by written consent because a special meeting allows all stockholders to participate in the proposed action and allows the Board to make a considered recommendation regarding the action. Further, our senior executives periodically discuss stockholder proposals and other governance matters with major institutional stockholders. These mechanisms for stockholders to initiate action and express their views and concerns to the Company make the proposed written consent procedure unnecessary.
- 3.

 The Company's current governance structure, as revised in recent years to incorporate best practices, already makes the Board responsive to stockholder concerns. 3M's Board of Directors has taken numerous actions (including those proposed by stockholders) to promote effective corporate governance and accountability to stockholders, including the following:

Declassifying the board In 2006, the Board recommended and stockholders approved amendments to the Certificate of Incorporation to eliminate the classified board and provide for the annual election of all directors.

Lead Director Since 2006, the Board has appointed a lead independent director, with responsibilities similar to those typically performed by an independent chairman, including the authority to call and preside over meetings of independent directors, act as a key liaison between the Chairman/CEO and the independent directors, approve

Table of Contents

schedules and agendas for Board meetings, and approve meeting materials for distribution to the Board.

No supermajority voting In 2007, the Board recommended and the stockholders approved amendments to the Certificate of Incorporation to eliminate the supermajority vote requirements.

Stockholders may call special meetings In 2008, the Board amended the Bylaws to provide stockholders holding at least 25 percent of the outstanding common shares the ability to call a special meeting of stockholders.

Majority voting In 2009, the Board amended the Bylaws to provide for majority voting for directors in uncontested elections.

3M's Board is primarily composed of independent directors All but one member of 3M's Board are independent directors.

The Board believes in policies and governance practices that serve the interests of the Company and its stockholders as a whole. This proposal would not do so.

Recommendation of the Board

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "AGAINST" this proposal for the reasons discussed above. Proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will be voted "AGAINST" this proposal unless a stockholder indicates otherwise in voting the proxy.

PROPOSAL NO. 5

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL ON PROHIBITING POLITICAL SPENDING FROM CORPORATE TREASURY FUNDS

3M has received a stockholder proposal from Clean Yield Asset Management., 16 Meadow Brook Road, Norwich, VT 05055, on behalf of David Rodgers, owner of 1,500 shares of 3M common stock (the "Proponent"). The Proponent has requested that the Company include the following proposal and supporting statement (*in italics*) in its Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The proposal may be voted on at the Annual Meeting only if properly presented by the Proponent or the Proponent's representative.

Stockholder Proposal:

WHEREAS:

Corporate political spending is a highly contentious issue, made more prominent in light of the 2010 Citizens United Supreme Court case that affirmed companies' rights to make unlimited political expenditures to independent groups.

Corporations contributed to the estimated \$6 billion spent on the 2012 electoral cycle through direct contributions to candidates and parties, ballot referenda, 527 committees and super PACs, as well as indirectly through trade associations and 501(c)4s, which do not have to reveal their donors. For example, the US Chamber of Commerce pledged to spend \$100 million during the 2012 election cycle to support candidates. According to Public Citizen, only 32% of groups broadcasting electioneering communications during the 2010 primaries revealed the donor identities in their Federal Election Commission filings.

In February 2010, an ABC News/Washington Post poll found that 80% opposed Citizens United across partisan lines. More recently, between 80-90% respondents in a Bannon Communications poll agreed, across party lines, with the following statements: there is "too much money in politics"; corporate

Table of Contents

political spending "drowns out the voices of average Americans"; corporations and corporate CEOs have "too much political power and influence"; and corporate political spending has made federal and state politics more negative and corrupt.

Political spending can backfire on reputation and bottom line. In 2010, Target and Valero received unwanted attention, consumer boycotts, and protests for their support of controversial candidates and ballot measures. Seventy nine percent of those polled by Bannon said they would boycott a company to protest its political spending; 65% would sell stock in the company, and over half would ask their employer to remove it from their retirement account.

3M and its political action committee have spent over in \$1.75 million in donations to federal PACs, parties, candidates and outside spending groups since 2002 (Center for Responsive Politics). At the state level, 3M, its PAC and employees together spent over \$875,000 in state races since 2002 (Institute for Money in State Politics). 3M has not clarified how much of these funds originated from the corporate treasury.

A growing number of companies have discontinued political spending either directly or through third parties (Sustainable Endowments Institute).

RESOLVED:

The shareholders request that the board of directors study the feasibility of adopting a policy prohibiting the use of treasury funds for any direct or indirect political contributions intended to influence the outcome of an election or referendum, and report to shareholders on its findings by October 2013.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT:

1.

Recent academic work has highlighted the risks of corporate political spending to the broader economy (Igan, et al, 2009), and some studies suggests it correlates negatively with shareholder value (Coates, 2012). Given the risks, potential negative impact, and questionable value of corporate political spending, we believe it would a prudent policy would include an end to direct political giving, and to end indirect giving by instructing trade associations and other nonprofits not to use 3M's contributions, dues or fees toward political ends.

Board's Statement Opposing the Proposal

After careful consideration, and for the following reasons, the Board believes that the proposal is not in the best interests of the Company or its stockholders, and the Board recommends voting "AGAINST" this proposal.

The Board believes that it is in the best interests of the stockholders and the Company for the Company to effectively participate in the legislative and regulatory process. Elected representatives at all levels of government make laws and regulations that can and do affect the Company's business. To effectively advocate the Company's and stockholders' interests, we believe we must actively participate in the political process, including by supporting candidates whose views are aligned with the Company's business interests.

Our public policy priorities and our political contributions are focused on the business interests of our Company and stockholders. The Company seeks to support candidates, organizations, and legislation that will advance the Company's business interests. In some instances, we may support or oppose proposed regulation to avoid being put at a competitive disadvantage. We recognize that candidates who receive contributions from the Company or its employee-funded Political Action Committee will not necessarily agree with our positions on all issues. We support candidates who, on balance, support issues and positions that management determines are in the best interests of the Company, our stockholders, and our employees.

Table of Contents

When making any decisions to support a candidate, organization, or issue, we take into account whether our support could have the unintended effect of damaging the Company's reputation.

The proposal also requests the Board to study the "feasibility of adopting a policy" prohibiting use of trade association dues for lobbying activities. The Company participates in a number of industry and trade associations. These associations offer the Company significant benefits by providing access to business, technical, and industry standard-setting expertise and by advancing the Company's commercial interests. Some of these associations may engage in lobbying. To increase transparency, we disclose on our Web site the trade associations we joined where \$25,000 or more of our dues or payments are allocated for lobbying purposes by the trade association. We also post on our Web site the Company's positions on important public policy issues to ensure that stakeholders understand our positions. This information is available on our Web site at www.3M.com under Investor Relations

Corporate Governance

"Political Activities and Issue Advocacy."

We recognize that our position on public policy issues does not always perfectly align with those of the trade associations to which we belong; trade associations address a wide range of issues and their members have divergent views and interests. For these reasons, we periodically evaluate our memberships in trade associations to ensure that, on balance, they continue to serve the long-term interests of our Company and stockholders. To study these issues further will simply result in unnecessary costs with no offsetting benefits.

The Company's political contributions strictly comply with the law and Company policy. As we participate in the electoral process, the Company is committed to following all applicable laws and our own standards of uncompromising honesty and integrity. The Company has for many years maintained (and publishes on www.3M.com/businessconduct) a Business Conduct Policy on political activities guiding 3M employees and those acting on our behalf with regard to political activities. Consistent with federal law, the Company does not make contributions to candidates for federal office or to national political party committees. Some states and localities allow companies to make contributions, and in those states we may support particular candidates or issues if management determines doing so advances the Company's and stockholders' business interests. Since 2002, 3M has contributed less than \$100,000 per year to state and local candidates and party committees.

The Company's Political Action Committee (PAC) is a nonpartisan committee established by the Company in accordance with federal law. The PAC is governed by a committee comprised of Company employees and funded solely by the voluntary personal contributions of management and supervisory employees and stockholders. The PAC makes direct contributions to the campaigns of candidates seeking federal offices, as well as to selected state and local campaigns where such contributions are allowed. The PAC's activities are overseen by senior executives in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. PAC contributions are made on a nonpartisan basis to support candidates who support business issues important to the Company and its stockholders. In 2012, PAC contributions to candidate committees totaled approximately \$210,000.

The Company discloses on its Web site all contributions to state and local candidates and political parties, contributions made by our employee-funded PAC, and contributions to "527" political organizations. The Company believes that transparency with respect to the consideration, processes, and oversight of our engagement with lawmakers is important to our stockholders, and continuously makes efforts to give our stockholders useful information about our political activities. Since 2007 (updated several times since then), the Company has voluntarily published a detailed explanation of the Company's political activities which is

33

Table of Contents

available on our Web site at www.3M.com under Investor Relations Corporate Governance "Political Activities and Issue Advocacy." There, the Company sets out in detail its positions on important public policy issues, the factors we consider when making political contributions, and the processes we use for legal, financial, executive, and board oversight of our political activities and contributions. We also provide links to the reports the 3M PAC files monthly with the Federal Election Commission and the Company's quarterly Lobbying Disclosure reports, as well as a detailed list of our contributions to state candidates and political parties, and contributions to "527" political organizations. The Company believes that these disclosures on our Web site, which exceed the disclosures required by law, offer transparency respecting the Company's political activities.

Recommendation of the Board

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "AGAINST" this proposal for the reasons discussed above. Proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will be voted "AGAINST" this proposal unless a stockholder indicates otherwise in voting the proxy.

INFORMATION ON STOCK OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table includes all 3M stock-based holdings, as of February 28, 2013, of the directors and the Named Executive Officers set forth in the Summary Compensation Table, and the directors and executive officers as a group.

Common Stock and Total Stock-Based Holdings

		Restricted		
		Stock	Deferred	
Name and Principal Position	Stock(1)	Units(2)	Stock(3)	Total(4)
Linda G. Alvarado, Director	13,918		9,583	23,501
Vance D. Coffman, Director	5,843		27,742	33,585
Michael L. Eskew, Director			22,410	22,410
W. James Farrell, Director			11,091	11,091
Herbert L. Henkel, Director			18,876	18,876
Edward M. Liddy, Director			37,565	37,565
Robert S. Morrison, Director	97,168		25,020	122,188
Aulana L. Peters, Director	5,370		47,322	52,692
Robert J. Ulrich, Director	8,503		6,161	14,664
Inge G. Thulin, Director,	561,517	24		561,541
Chairman of the Board, President and				
Chief Executive Officer				
George W. Buckley, Former Director and	961,848	14,125	25,660(5)	1,001,633
Executive Chairman of the Board (effective May 8, 2012)				
David W. Meline,	75,160	7,268	11,487	93,915
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer				
Ivan K. Fong,	665	11,205		11,870
Senior Vice President, Legal Affairs and General Counsel				
Hak Cheol Shin,	373,175	2,720		375,895
Executive Vice President				
Brad T. Sauer,	371,681			371,681
Executive Vice President				
All Directors and Executive Officers as a Group (25 persons)(6)	3,780,253	112,221	255,452	4,147,926

FOOTNOTES TO COMMON STOCK AND TOTAL STOCK-BASED HOLDINGS TABLE

(1) This column lists beneficial ownership of 3M common stock as calculated under Securities and Exchange Commission rules. Unless otherwise noted, voting power and investment power in the shares are exercisable solely by the named person, and none of the shares are pledged as security by the named person. As disclosed in last year's Proxy Statement, Mr. Buckley had pledged 39,000 shares to secure a financing arrangement prior to the Compensation Committee's action in May 2012 to completely prohibit such pledging in the future by the Directors and Executive Officers of the Company. In accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission rules, this column also includes shares that

Table of Contents

may be acquired pursuant to stock options that are or will be exercisable within 60 days of February 28, 2013, as follows: Mr. Thulin (506,973), Mr. Buckley (720,599), Mr. Meline (62,748), Mr. Shin (324,871), Mr. Sauer (349,144), and Mr. Morrison (92,632). Mr. Morrison's options were granted during his service as interim CEO from June 30 to December 6, 2005. This column includes the following shares over which the identified Director has shared voting and investment power through family trusts or joint accounts: Mr. Morrison (3,934) and Mrs. Peters (5,370).

- (2) This column reflects restricted stock units that generally vest over a three- to five-year period, assuming continued employment until each vesting date (or until the individual retires from the Company, in some cases). The Executive Officers do not have voting power with respect to the shares listed in this column.
- (3) This column reflects shares earned by the Directors as a result of their service on the Board of Directors, the payout of which has been deferred until following the termination of their membership on the Board of Directors. This column also includes the following shares of the Company's common stock which the Executive Officers are entitled to receive following their retirement from the Company as a result of their election to defer the payout of their 2008 performance share awards under the 3M Performance Unit Plan and/or the payout of their 2010 performance share awards under the 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan: Mr. Buckley (25,660), Mr. Meline (11,487), and All Directors and Executive Officers as a Group (255,452). Neither the Directors nor the Executive Officers have voting power with respect to the shares listed in this column.
- (4) This column shows the individual's total 3M stock-based holdings, including the securities shown in the "Stock" column (as described in note 1), in the "Restricted Stock Units" column (as described in note 2), and in the "Deferred Stock" column (as described in note 3).
- (5) Of this total number of shares, beneficial ownership of 4,733 shares earned by Mr. Buckley as a result of his 2008 performance share award under the 3M Performance Unit Plan has been assigned to his former spouse pursuant to their marital dissolution agreement.
- (6) All Directors and Executive Officers, as a group, owned beneficially less than one percent of the outstanding common stock of the Company.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MORE THAN 5 PERCENT STOCKHOLDERS

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of more than 5 percent of the outstanding 3M stock.

	Common Stock Beneficially	Percent of
Name/Address	Owned	Class
State Street Corporation(1)	51,796,286	7.5
State Street Financial Center		
One Lincoln Street		
Boston, MA 02111		
BlackRock, Inc.(2)	41,038,740	5.93
40 East 52nd Street		

New York, NY 10022

(1) State Street Corporation ("State Street") reported in a Schedule 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 12, 2013, that it held as of December 31, 2012, shared voting and shared dispositive power with respect to 51,796,286 shares of 3M common stock. State Street serves as trustee for certain 3M savings plans, including the Company's Voluntary Investment Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plan, a 401(k) retirement savings plan.

Table of Contents

(2) Based on information on a Schedule 13G filed by BlackRock, Inc. with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 8, 2013.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors and executive officers, and any person owning more than 10 percent of 3M common stock, to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission reports regarding their ownership and changes in ownership of our stock. As a practical matter, 3M assists its directors and executive officers by monitoring transactions and completing and filing Section 16 reports on their behalf. 3M believes that during 2012, its directors and executive officers complied with all Section 16(a) filing requirements. In making this statement, 3M has relied upon examination of the copies of Forms 3, 4, and 5 and the written representations of its directors and executive officers.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Executive Summary

When viewed in historical perspective, the year 2012 at 3M will be recognized for the transition to new leadership and the articulation of new long-term goals that set the Company on a course to continuing long-term sustainable shareholder value. Inge Thulin became 3M's twelfth President/Chief Executive Officer effective February 24, 2012, and set in motion a year of significant changes in the Company's structure and strategies. These changes included the launch of a new 3M Vision and the following six corporate business strategies, a realignment to five market-focused Business Groups effective January 1, 2013 to drive those strategies, and the creation of new operating divisions to pursue business opportunities in the promising markets of aerospace; defense; and mining, oil and gas.

Table of Contents

The Company delivered solid financial results during 2012. Highlights of the results that influenced the compensation earned by 3M's executives, including the Named Executive Officers, are:

Full-year earnings were \$6.32 per share, an increase of 6.0 percent. Correspondingly, 3M's full-year Economic Profit, a key metric in determining the amount of annual incentive compensation earned by the Company's executives, increased by 2.0 percent from 2011, to a total of \$2.353 billion.

Full-year sales increased by 1.0 percent from 2011, to a total of \$29.9 billion, despite the negative impact of foreign currency translation that reduced sales by 2.4 percent year-over-year. Organic local-currency sales volume growth (an important measure in determining the amount of long-term incentive compensation earned by 3M's executives) was 1.2 percent.

Sales from new products, as measured by the New Product Vitality Index (another metric used in determining the amount of long-term incentive compensation earned by the Company's executives), increased from 32 percent in 2011 to 33 percent in 2012. Sales from new products is an important measure confirming 3M's ongoing success at innovation and commercialization.

Return on invested capital (a third metric applied in determining the amount of long-term incentive compensation earned by 3M executives) remained strong at 20 percent, which far exceeds the returns generated by most of the companies in 3M's executive compensation peer group.

These solid financial results, when combined with strong individual performances and leadership, as well as compensation increases for individuals assuming new positions to reflect their increased responsibilities, caused the annual incentive compensation earned by three of 3M's Named Executive Officers (Inge Thulin, David Meline, and Brad Sauer) during 2012 to increase over the amounts they earned during 2011. Mr. Shin's payout declined due to the 2012 performance of 3M's International Operations as compared to its plan for the year. Mr. Buckley, who retired on June 1, 2012, did not earn a full year's worth of annual incentive compensation for 2012. Mr. Fong did not receive annual incentive compensation for 2011, since his employment commenced on October 15, 2012.

2012 also marked the final year of the three-year performance period for the 2010 performance shares granted to the Named Executive Officers under the 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan. When the solid results from 2012 were combined with the Company's even better results in 2010 and 2011, as measured against each of the three criteria established by the Compensation Committee for determining the payout on these awards (Organic Sales Volume Growth, Return on Invested Capital, and sales from new products as measured by the New Product Vitality Index), this three-year period of overall strong performance resulted in a payout in 3M shares equal to 138 percent of the number of original performance shares.

3M's common stock provided a total shareholder return (stock price appreciation plus dividends) of 16.7 percent during 2012. As reflected in the following table, 3M's stock performance (total shareholder return of 26.5 percent over the five years ending December 31, 2012) continues to compare favorably with the stock performance of the peer companies included in the Company's executive compensation peer group (for which the median total shareholder return over the same five-year period was 24.0 percent). Though the Company's performance over the three-year period ended December 31, 2012 fell below most of the companies in this peer group, that relative performance is explained by the fact that this period excludes 3M's strong performance during 2009 (total return of nearly 60 percent) and includes the year 2010 when many of the companies in this peer group experienced rebounding stock prices as the economy and markets emerged from the global financial crisis of late 2008 and 2009. It also reflects the tendency for the Company's financial performance to recover from periods of slower growth faster than many of its peers, which is then reflected in its stock price.

Edgar Filing: 3M CO - Form DEF 14A
Table of Contents
Factors Creating Alignment between Pay and Performance and Balancing Risk
3M's executive compensation program is designed to maintain a strong alignment between corporate performance and executive compensation by tying incentive compensation to the achievement of performance metrics that increase the Company's long-term value. The incentive compensation portion of the program rewards sustainable performance while also protecting the Company and its stockholders from inappropriate risk-taking and conflicts between the interests of the executives and the interests of the Company and its stockholders. Highlights of the program include:
A large portion of each executive's Total Direct Compensation (cash plus long-term incentives) is performance-based, varying from 88 percent for CEO Inge Thulin to a range of 73-87 percent for the other Named Executive Officers;
The incentive compensation provided to the Company's executives use multiple performance-based metrics, which are
focused primarily on growth in revenue and earnings, as well as the efficient use of capital; and

Stock ownership guidelines that are designed to align the financial interests of executives with those of the Company's

39

stockholders.

Table of Contents

Compensation Best Practices

3M's executive compensation program incorporates and is administered according to the following best practices:

The program is controlled by a Compensation Committee comprised of experienced and independent individuals, assisted by an independent compensation consultant who provides no other services to the Company or 3M management besides independent advisory support to the Nominating and Governance Committee on the compensation of the Company's nonemployee directors.

The Board of Directors has adopted a comprehensive clawback policy which enables the Company to recover overpayments of incentive compensation if it is required to make a material restatement of its financial statements.

The Company has robust stock ownership guidelines which apply to all Section 16 officers of the Company.

The Company does not have arrangements providing for the payment of excise tax gross-ups in the event of a change in control of the Company.

3M provides its executives with a limited number and amount of perquisites, and does not provide tax gross-ups on any of these perquisites.

The Company does not have employment or change in control agreements with any of its senior executives, including its Chief Executive Officer.

3M does not have severance plans or arrangements with any of its senior executives, including its Chief Executive Officer.

Equity awards granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan since 2010 have a "double trigger" accelerated vesting provision in the event of a change in control of the Company, meaning that vesting is accelerated only if an individual's employment is terminated within 18 months following the change in control.

3M prohibits the hedging or pledging of 3M common stock owned by its Section 16 officers.

Significant Compensation Actions During the Past Year

During 2012 and the first two months of 2013, 3M and the Committee made the following decisions and took the following actions with respect to the Company's executive compensation program:

Appointed Inge Thulin as President and Chief Executive Officer and approved his new compensation arrangement (consisting of an annual base salary of \$1,300,000, target annual incentive compensation of \$2,000,000, and annual long-term incentive compensation awards with a grant value of \$8,000,000). Mr. Thulin's compensation arrangement includes no employment agreement or supplemental retirement benefits;

As part of the Committee's annual review of 3M's executive compensation peer group, removed three companies that no longer meet the criteria of being investment peers or having market capitalization and annual revenues reasonably similar to 3M, and included five new companies that do meet these criteria;

Increased the target percentage for the portion of the Total Cash Compensation delivered in the form of performance-based annual incentive compensation to 154 percent of annual base salary for Mr. Thulin and 100 percent of annual base salary for Mr. Meline. The Committee also increased the target percentage for Mr. Shin and Mr. Sauer to 85 percent of their annual base salaries, which

Table of Contents

percentage will be reached over time. Upon commencement of his employment in October, Mr. Fong's target percentage was established at 75 percent of his annual base salary;

Increased by 36,000,000 the number of shares of 3M common stock available for issuance or delivery pursuant to awards granted under the 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan;

Revised the Company's policy on the pledging of shares of 3M common stock to eliminate any exception to the policy's prohibition of the pledging of such shares by its Section 16 officers and directors following the Committee's action in May 2012; and

Revised the formula for determining the amount of compensation earned under the Company's broad-based annual incentive plan to place greater emphasis upon revenue growth.

Principles of 3M's Executive Compensation Program

3M believes that the compensation of its executives should be closely tied to the performance and growth of the Company, so that their interests are aligned with the interests of long-term 3M stockholders. Consistent with this philosophy, the following core principles provide a framework for the Company's executive compensation program:

Total Direct Compensation should be competitive to attract the best talent to 3M, motivate executives to perform at their highest levels, reward individual contributions that improve the Company's ability to deliver outstanding performance, and retain those executives with the leadership abilities and skills necessary for building long-term stockholder value;

The portion of Total Direct Compensation that is performance-based (or varies with performance) and is therefore at risk should increase with the level of an individual's responsibility;

The program should balance incentives for delivering outstanding long-term, sustainable performance and the potential for encouraging inappropriate risk-taking;

The metrics and targets for earning performance-based incentives should be consistent with the Company's business objectives and increasing stockholder value over the long term; and

Executives are most effectively motivated to build long-term stockholder value when a significant portion of their personal net worth is held in 3M stock.

Terms

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis uses the following terms when discussing executive compensation of the Company:

"Adjusted Net Income" means the net income of 3M as reported in its Consolidated Statement of Income, as adjusted to exclude special items.

"Benchmarking Groups" means both the survey comparator group and 3M's executive compensation peer group of 19 companies, as described in the "Benchmarking" section of this CD&A.

"Committee" means the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of 3M Company.

"Economic Profit" means the after-tax income of the Company or a business unit (operating income, plus interest income, minus income taxes), adjusted to exclude special items and the impact of acquisitions or divestitures in the year each acquisition or divestiture is completed (unless such acquisition or divestiture is included in the operating plan for the business), less a charge (10 percent in 2012) for the capital used to generate such after-tax operating income. Company Economic Profit is calculated using total Company capital, while the Economic Profit of

Table of Contents

a business unit is calculated using only accounts receivable and inventories of such business unit as capital.

"Local Currency Sales," a metric used in the Company's annual incentive plans, means the sales of the Company or a business unit, in local currency, adjusted to exclude the impact of acquisitions or divestitures in the year each acquisition or divestiture is completed (unless such acquisition or divestiture is included in the operating plan for the business).

"Named Executive Officers" means the executives whose compensation is reported in the Summary Compensation Table of this Proxy Statement. For 2012, these "Named Executive Officers" are Inge G. Thulin, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer; George W. Buckley, retired (effective June 1, 2012) Executive Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer; David W. Meline, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; Ivan K. Fong, Senior Vice President, Legal Affairs and General Counsel; Hak Cheol Shin, Executive Vice President, International Operations; and Brad T. Sauer, Executive Vice President, Industrial Business Group.

"New Product Vitality Index" means the percentage of the Company's total sales derived from products introduced within the last five years.

"Organic Sales Volume Growth," a metric used in determining the value of performance shares awarded under the 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan, means the percentage amount by which the Company's worldwide organic sales growth (sales growth excluding the sales attributable to acquisitions or divestitures for the 12 months following the date each acquisition or divestiture is completed, and excluding price and currency effects) exceeds worldwide real sales growth as reflected in the worldwide Industrial Production Index, as published by Global Insight.

"Return on Invested Capital" means the after-tax income of the Company (operating income, plus interest income, minus income taxes), adjusted to exclude special items and the impact of acquisitions or divestitures in the year each acquisition or divestiture is completed, divided by the average quarterly operating capital of the Company (total assets, minus total liabilities other than debt).

"Total Cash Compensation" means the total of an individual's base salary and annual incentive compensation.

"Total Direct Compensation" means the total of an individual's Total Cash Compensation plus the grant value of their annual long-term incentive compensation awards (which is based on their grant date fair value as measured under accounting standards).

Benchmarking

In order to provide competitive Total Direct Compensation, 3M annually surveys the executive compensation practices of a large group of comparator companies (approximately 160, although the number and identity of the companies may vary from year to year). Survey data is statistically regressed to recognize the different sizes of the comparator companies (based on annual revenues) as compared to the size of 3M. The survey data is obtained from three consulting firms (Aon Hewitt, Frederic W. Cook & Co., Inc., and Towers Watson). The survey comparator group consists of companies in the Dow Jones Industrial Average (excluding financial services companies), and other companies with annual revenue exceeding \$10 billion that participate in the three consultants' executive compensation surveys. By using survey data covering a large number of comparator companies, 3M is able to conduct a rigorous benchmarking process with more complete and reliable data for each executive position benchmarked. The Committee does not review the identity of the companies in this survey comparator group.

Table of Contents

In addition, Aon Hewitt and Frederic W. Cook & Co., Inc. provide pay data and information on the executive compensation practices at the companies in 3M's executive compensation peer group. This pay data is used by the Committee to assess the reasonableness of the benchmarking results for each executive position benchmarked, helping to ensure that the Company's compensation objectives are being met. 3M's executive compensation peer group consists of the following 19 companies, as recommended by the Committee's independent compensation consultant and approved by the Committee:

Caterpillar Inc.
Corning Incorporated
Covidien plc
Danaher Corp.
Deere & Company
Dow Chemical Company
Eaton Corporation
E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company
Emerson Electric Co.

Illinois Tool Works Inc.
Johnson & Johnson
Kimberly-Clark Corporation
Medtronic, Inc.
Parker-Hannifin Corporation
The Procter & Gamble Company
TE Connectivity Ltd.
Tyco International Ltd.
United Technologies Corporation

Honeywell International Inc.

The companies in this executive compensation peer group were selected because (1) their performance is monitored regularly by the same market analysts who monitor the performance of 3M (investment peers), and/or (2) they meet criteria based on similarity of their business and pay models, market capitalization (based on an eight-quarter rolling average), and annual revenues. During 2012, the Committee removed Avery Dennison, Ecolab, and General Electric from the peer group because they are no longer used by the Company as investment peers, and because Avery Dennison and Ecolab no longer meet the size criteria required for inclusion. During 2012, the Committee added Covidien, Corning, Dow Chemical, Parker-Hannifin, and TE Connectivity to the peer group. Since these changes were made relatively late in the year, they did not generally affect the 2012 compensation decisions made by the Committee.

How the Committee uses this Benchmarking Information

When establishing and adjusting the Total Cash Compensation and long-term incentive compensation of the Named Executive Officers and other senior executives, the Committee considers the pay data from the Benchmarking Groups. The Committee also uses information on the executive compensation practices at companies in the executive compensation peer group when considering design changes to the Company's executive compensation program.

With this information the Committee aims to provide the Company's executives whose performance meets the Company's expectations with Total Cash Compensation that is at or very close to the median of the corresponding compensation paid to executives in the Benchmarking Groups, and with long-term incentive compensation delivered through annual grants having values that are generally within a range of 80 to 120 percent of the median of the corresponding grant values provided to executives in the Benchmarking Groups. For those executives whose performance consistently exceeds the Company's expectations, their Total Cash Compensation can reach 120 to 125 percent of the median of the corresponding compensation paid to executives in the Benchmarking Groups. Executives whose performance far exceeds the Company's expectations can receive annual long-term incentive compensation grants having values that are within a range of 125 to 160 percent of the median of the corresponding grant values provided to executives in the Benchmarking Groups.

Overall, the Company believes that use of this information from the Benchmarking Groups enables the Committee to create better alignment between executive pay and performance and to help ensure that 3M can attract and retain high-performing executive leaders.

Table of Contents

Role of the Compensation Committee and its Advisors

3M provides compensation to its executives to recognize their contributions to the success of its business and reward them for delivering performance that meets the growth, profitability, and other objectives of the Company. All elements of this compensation are determined by the Committee, which is composed solely of independent nonemployee directors. In addition, the Committee's decisions concerning the compensation of 3M's Chief Executive Officer are subject to ratification by all of the independent members of the Board of Directors.

The Committee regularly reviews the design of and risks associated with the Company's executive compensation program and, with the assistance of its independent compensation consultant, makes decisions concerning changes in the executive compensation program when appropriate.

During 2012, the Committee was assisted by its independent compensation consultant, George B. Paulin of Frederic W. Cook & Co., Inc. In addition to participating in the meetings of the Committee, Mr. Paulin provides the Committee with advice regarding the Company's executive salary structure, annual and long-term incentive compensation plans, compensation-related risks, and other executive pay policies. He also provides expert knowledge of marketplace trends and best practices relating to executive compensation practices and competitive pay levels. Mr. Paulin and his firm provide no other services to the Company or 3M management, with the exception of independent advisory support to the Nominating and Governance Committee on the compensation of 3M's nonemployee directors so that valuation methodologies and peer groups are consistent with those used for executives and other employees. During the year the Committee conducted an evaluation of the independence of Mr. Paulin and his firm considering the relevant regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange, and it concluded that the services performed by Mr. Paulin and his firm raised no conflicts of interest.

3M's executive officers assist the Committee with the process of determining the compensation of the Company's executives. In particular, Mr. Thulin, assisted by 3M's Senior Vice President, Human Resources, performs an annual performance evaluation of each of 3M's senior executives whose compensation is determined by the Committee. The results of these annual performance evaluations form the basis for Mr. Thulin's recommendations to the Committee as to the annual merit base salary and target annual incentive compensation increases for such senior executives, as well as the size of their annual long-term incentive compensation awards. The Committee discusses these recommendations with Mr. Thulin at its meetings prior to making its decisions on the amount of any increase to an executive's annual base salary or target annual incentive compensation or any long-term incentive compensation awards.

The Committee reviews and approves annual performance goals and objectives for 3M's Chief Executive Officer. Acting through its Chairman, the Committee also conducts and discusses with the independent members of the Board of Directors an annual evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer's performance against such goals and objectives. Finally, the Committee, assisted by its independent compensation consultant, annually reviews and approves (based on this annual evaluation), subject to ratification by the independent members of the Board of Directors, the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer.

Elements of the Compensation Program

The compensation program for 3M's executives consists of the fo	ollowing elements:
---	--------------------

base salary:

short-term cash incentive in the form of an annual performance-based award opportunity; and

44

long-term equity incentives in the form of annual awards of performance shares and stock options, and in some years, grants of restricted stock or restricted stock units.

3M's executives also participate in various benefit plans made available to most of 3M's U.S. employees, are eligible to participate in three deferred compensation plans (which enable them to save for retirement or other financial planning purposes), and receive certain other benefits, each of which is described in further detail in the All Other Compensation Table. The entire program applied to approximately 115 executives during 2012, including all of the Named Executive Officers.

The following table shows how the 2012 Total Direct Compensation of each Named Executive Officer was apportioned among these elements, and how these elements relate to the strategic business goals of the Company. This table also reflects the relative balance among the elements as well as the alignment of these executives' compensation with the goal of creating long-term value for the Company and its stockholders.

Elements of Total Direct Compensation Strategic Goal Alignment Percent of CEO's & Other NEOs' Performance-**Efficient** Total Total Compensation **Based** Form of **Direct** Use Shareholder **Element** Compensation Compensation Compensation* Growth of Capital Return 12% CEO **Base Salary** Cash 18-27% NEOs Cash (200% cap) Equity (amount 18% CEO Annual ü Incentive exceeding 200% 18-20% NEOs cap) 35% CEO **Stock Options** ii Equity 23-32% NEOs Performance 35% CEO ü Equity Shares 27-34% NEOs

*

Information in this column excludes Mr. Buckley, who retired on June 1, 2012

Base Salary

3M pays each of its executives a base salary in cash on a monthly basis. The amount of this base salary is reviewed annually, and does not vary with the performance of the Company. Base salaries are designed to compensate the executives for their normal day-to-day responsibilities, and it is the only component of their compensation that is considered to be fixed rather than variable in nature.

Annual Incentive

3M provides its executives with annual incentive compensation through plans that are designed to align a significant portion of their Total Cash Compensation with the financial performance of the Company and its business units. Each executive is assigned a target amount of annual

incentive compensation as part of his or her Total Cash Compensation, but the amount of annual incentive compensation actually paid depends on the performance of 3M and its relevant business units. For Mr. Thulin, annual incentive compensation represented 61 percent of his target Total Cash Compensation for 2012. For 3M's other Named Executive Officers (excluding Mr. Buckley), annual incentive compensation represented from 43 percent to 50 percent of their target Total Cash Compensation for 2012.

3M's broad-based annual incentive plan delivers short-term incentive compensation based on three performance metrics:

Local Currency Sales (of 3M or a business unit, as applicable) vs. plan for the current year;

Economic Profit (of 3M or a business unit, as applicable) vs. plan for the current year; and

45

Table of Contents

3M Economic Profit vs. the prior year.

While the annual incentive compensation earned by most 3M executives is determined under this broad-based incentive plan, the annual incentive compensation earned by 3M's Named Executive Officers, as well as the other senior executives whose compensation is decided by the Committee, is determined under the Executive Annual Incentive Plan approved by 3M's stockholders at the 2007 Annual Meeting. A total of 23 3M senior executives participated in this Executive Annual Incentive Plan during 2012. This Executive Annual Incentive Plan, which is intended to provide compensation that is exempt from the \$1 million annual deduction limit of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code, provides performance-based compensation for which the performance goal is the Company's Adjusted Net Income.

The Executive Annual Incentive Plan establishes a maximum amount of annual incentive compensation that may be earned by each covered executive for a year, which is one-quarter of one percent of the Company's Adjusted Net Income for such year for each Named Executive Officer. However, the Committee utilizes the discretion provided by the Plan to pay each covered executive less than this maximum amount based on such factors as it deems relevant.

The primary factors considered by the Committee in determining the amount of the Named Executive Officers' annual incentive compensation are each executive's individual performance and the performance of the Company and its business units, as measured by the three performance metrics referred to above and that are used to determine payouts under the broad-based annual incentive plan. While the Committee considers and is guided by the amounts that would be payable under the broad-based annual incentive plan if these executives were covered by such plan, it is not bound by these results and may pay different amounts.

Individual performance is considered as a factor based upon the annual performance evaluation that Mr. Thulin, assisted by 3M's Senior Vice President, Human Resources, does for each covered executive (other than himself) and the annual performance evaluation that the Compensation Committee acting through its Chairman does for Mr. Thulin. These performance evaluations are done according to 3M's overall performance assessment and management processes, which involve setting annual financial and non-financial goals and objectives for each individual and then assessing the individual's performance against these goals and objectives at the end of the year. The annual performance evaluation assesses each executive's overall performance against these goals and objectives, but does not assess performance against each goal or objective in a formulaic manner.

Long-term Incentives

3M provides long-term incentive compensation to its executives through the Long-Term Incentive Plan approved by 3M's stockholders at the 2008 Annual Meeting. This is a typical omnibus-type plan that authorizes the Committee to grant stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, performance cash, performance shares, and other stock awards to management employees of the Company. The Company provides its executives with this long-term incentive compensation based on 3M common stock in order to effectively motivate such executives to build long-term stockholder value.

Benefits and Perquisites

3M's executives generally participate in the same health care, disability, life insurance, pension, and 401(k) benefit plans available to most of the Company's U.S. employees.

Executives also receive a limited number of additional benefits and perquisites described in more detail in the All Other Compensation Table of this Proxy Statement. These additional benefits and perquisites are provided for the convenience (financial planning assistance, for example), financial

Table of Contents

security (retirement contributions and premiums for additional life insurance coverage, for example), or personal security (travel on corporate aircraft, for example) of the executives. No tax gross-ups are provided on any of these additional benefits and perquisites.

How 3M Determined the 2012 Compensation of the Named Executive Officers

All amounts were determined by the Committee, assisted by its independent compensation consultant, with the input of Mr. Thulin (other than with respect to his own compensation). This input included:

Mr. Thulin's recommendations based on the results of his most recent annual performance evaluations of the other Named Executive Officers (other than Mr. Buckley);

The compensation information from the companies in the Benchmarking Groups; and

A tally sheet comparing the amounts of compensation actually received by the Company's Named Executive Officers to the amounts reported in its annual Proxy Statement as well as the compensation that would be owed to such individuals in the event of the termination of their employment. This tally sheet helps the Committee better understand the Company's potential obligations to the Named Executive Officers following the termination of their employment, as well as assessing the risk of any individual leaving the Company prematurely for the purpose of considering whether it is providing sufficient retention incentives.

Differences in the amounts of compensation provided to 3M's Named Executive Officers reflect a variety of factors, including job responsibilities, the market pay for executives performing similar responsibilities (as measured by the pay information obtained from companies in the Benchmarking Groups), experience and time in their current positions, internal pay equity, and individual performance. Initially, the Committee aims to provide the Named Executive Officers with Total Cash Compensation that is at or very close to the median value of the corresponding compensation provided to executives with similar responsibilities at companies in the Benchmarking Groups.

However, the Committee adjusts the stock option portion of the long-term incentive compensation provided to the Named Executive Officers to reflect each individual's actual individual performance during the previous year.

2012 Base Salary and Target Total Cash Compensation

Changes in the base salaries and target Total Cash Compensation of the Named Executive Officers are considered annually by the Committee. Any adjustments are made after considering the most recent compensation data for executives with similar responsibilities at companies in the Benchmarking Groups, each individual's position in the salary range for his or her position, and the individual's performance during the preceding annual period.

In February 2012, the Committee approved the following increases in the base salaries and target Total Cash Compensation of the Named Executive Officers other than Mr. Thulin, Mr. Buckley, and Mr. Fong:

		New Base		Previous	New target	
	Previous	Salary		target	Total Cash	
	Base	effective	%	Total Cash	Compensation	%
Name	Salary	4/1/12	Increase	Compensation	effective 4/1/12	Increase

David W. Meline